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ras to General Sarsfield. in answer to one written by the Íatter, requesting
to see the order bv which he was directed to quit the Puerto at such a crit-
ical moment, in which he says,

'
that he cannot send him a copv of that let-

ter, because it is confidentiaj, but that his presence is necessaryat the head-
quarters to assist in the operations about to take place for the relief of the
garrison, and that he has not a moment to lose.' 4th. The copy of another
letter written on the same day by General Contreras to the superior junta,
in which he says that General 'Sarsfield quitted the Puerto without his
knowledge I!I"

Ge.^ral Doyle to Colonel Roche.

"
Is it possible to coneeive anytbing so absurd, and 1 could almos* sav

vñcked, as the conduet of the junta or captain-general of Carthagena. in tali-
ing away the firelocks from the regiments Oiey sent with such parade of their
patriotism to relieve Tarragona. Two thousand men are already in this eitv
without firelocks, such is the daily destruction of arms by the "enemy's fire,
and the getting out of repair from constant use."

"June 23, 1S11

Captain Codrington to Sir Charles Cotton."
Off Tarragona, June 23, 1811

"Another regiment arrived from Carthagena yesterday, under convov of
the Cossaek ;but, as on a former occasion, their arms were taken from them
by Colonel Roche, upon their going to embark, and therefore, as being of
no use to the garrison, Ihave, by desire of the general, sent them to Villa
Nueva, and as there are already 2000 men in the place without arms, Ihave
sent the Termagant to Carthagena, to endeavor to procure those which have
been thus inconsiderately taken from the troops belonging to that place.

Captain Codrington to Sir C. Cotton.
[Extract]

"June 29, 1811
"Tb- Regulus with five transports including a victimler arrived with

tíolonel Skerrett and his detachments on the 2í>th. The surf was so great
on that. day that we had no other communication in the for.-noon than by
a man swimming on 6hore witha letter. and upon Colonel Skenvtt putliig
questions to General Doyle and myself upon the conduet he should ptirsue
according to his orders, we agreed in our opinión that although the arrival
of the troops before the Puerto (lower town) was taken would probablv
have saved the garrison, it was now too late, and that their being land.-.l,
ifpracticable, would only serve to prolong the fate of the place for a icr\-

short time at the certain sacrifice of the whole eventually. This opinión
was grouiide-1 on a number of different circumstances, and was in perfect
coincidence with that of Cnptains Adán, and White. In the evening the
surf abated sufficiently forGeneral Doyle, Colonel Skerrett, and some of his
officers. as v'.ll as the captains of the squadron and myself, to wait upon
General Con'j-eras, who repeated his determination to cut bis way out and
join the Míi-quis of Campo Verde Ote instaut Ote enemy's breaching battery
should open, and which he expected would take place the followingmorning,
and who asrieed the English ought not to land with any view of defending
the town. although he wished them to join in his meditated sortie."
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Extraéis from General Contreras' Report.
(Translated.J

Isaw lyself reduced to my own garrison."—" Iconsidered ifmy forcéwas capable of this effort (defending the breach), one of the most heroi thatwar furnishes and to which few men can bring themselves. Irecollectedhowever that Ihad still eight thousand ofthe best and most experieneed troopsm ¿Vain— All consp.red against this poor garrison. Campo Verde inqmtting the place promised to come back quickly toits succor, but he didnot although he da. y renewed his proralses. The kingdom of Valenciasent Miranda with a división which disembarked, and the day following re-embarked and went to join Campo Verde."
lonowmg le

1" D̂,íl"glÍsh divi.s!oií carae on the 26t'n. Colonel Skerrett, who com-
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teshouf berecavedvxthjoyandtreatedas hemerited; that he had only totsZ ,7/Zf he TM

t \°<kS? d and J wmdd ü t0 him< t'^aUwas at his choice, since Iwould neither command nor eounsel him. The 27th
onfat
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antS °f artUle/yP OTgÍneerS 0ame to examine lef ont attacked and being convinced that the place was not ina state to re-
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This abandonment on thepart of those who carne to save was the worst of

tbUÍTJLTi a"ImireSSI°n °n
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the S
°ldiers that theybeSan to see thatthey were lost, became low-spinted and only resisted from my continual

tW
01;'ffi!0nS'a"\bfause tbe y saw myooolness and the confidence Ihad,that ifthey executed my orders the French would fail. But this only lasted

al olher" dé » S abandoned aSain 8<^d them and overéame

Captain Codrington to Sir C. Cotton.

"July 12, 1811.. The vacillating conduet of General Contreras regarding the defence ofTarragona is a principal feature in the loss of that important fortress."

Captain Codrington to Sir E. Pellew.

"July 12, 1811.
The Marqms Mames Generáis Caro and Miranda, whilst the Íatterretort the accusation ; and Iam inclined to think that in giving full creditto what each says of the other. neither willsuffer ignominy bevond that towhich his conduet has entitled him."

Ditlo to Mr. Wellesley.
[Extract.]

"July 20, 1811.
"The disasters which have befallen the principality will produce mate-rial accusations against the generáis who lately commanded in it without Ifear, any of them meetmg the punishment which is their due. Some of theene osed papers may help yon to form a just opinión of their conduet andthat of the Spanish marine ;and those respecting the arms for which Isentto Carthagena will show how far Colonel Roche is entitled to the meritxvhieh he so largely assuraes on that occasion

"
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•'To enable v-ou to form a correct opinión of General Contreras Imust
refer you toGeneral Doyle. as from his ignoranee of our service, the varióos
requests and proposals which aróse from the vacillations in what he called
his determinations, were signified to me through him. Itdoes not appear
to me that. he ever visited the works himself, or itwould not have fallen to

the lot of Captain Adam and myself to remove twoboats, two large stages,
pixteen gun-carriages, and a rnortar from the mole, long after the French
were advanced beyond the Francoli battery, and two nights previous to
their gaining the Puerto ; an accidental visit to the mole one night, just
after piacing the gunboats and huinches, discovered to me this mortar with
no less than twelve guns inreadiness for forming abattery ;and upon General
Doyle, by myrequest, representing this to the general of artillery, he talked
of inquiring into it to-morrow.""

Itwould be a waste of words to describe further the conduet of the
general ofartillery, or Imight find sufficient subject in the events of every
passing day from the first investment of the place."

—"
Ishall be veryready

to come forward personallv in aid of that justiee which is due to the num-
berless brave men who fell a sacrifice to the criuiinality of the persons
alluded to, who have so grossly misconducted themselves."

Section II.

Captain Codrington to Sir E. Pellew. "
July 29, 1811

"Had Colonel Green, the military agent appointed to succeed General
Doyle, adopted the plan of his predecessors of continuing at the heatl-
quarters of the army and in personal communication with the cnptain-
general, instead of retiring to Peniscola with the money and arms remain-
ing, we should not be left as we are to the precarious source of mere acci-
dental communications for receiving intelligence."

Captain Codrington to Don F. Savartcs, vocal of the Junta.
"July1%, 1811,"

Colonel Green, the British military agent, being at Peniscola, 1
have opened the letter from the junta to him."

—"
Had Inot in this instauce

opened the letters to the admiral and the military agent, the junta would
have received no answer to them until it would have been too late to exc-
cute their object"

Captain Tilomas to Captain Codrington.

(Eitract ]

"H. M. S. Undaunled, off Arens, Oct. 1, 1811,
"Having observed, in the Catalonia Gazette of the 24th of Septvmb.-r,

the copy oí a letter said tobe written by Colonel Green to his excellency Gen-
eral Lacv, relative to our operations on the Medas Islands, from the surren-
der of the castle to the period of our quitting them, Ibeg leaye to state to

you mv surprise and astonishinent as seeing faets so grossly niisrepresented,
ánd request you willbe pleased to contradict in the most positiye manner
the

—
(litionn tliere made use of. To prove how ineonsistent tliU letter is

withreal faets, itmay be neeessary for me only to say that Colonel Green,

in the presence and hearing of all' the English officers. on my asking him a
question relative to the praciicabiüty of keeping the island, did declare that



496 NAPIER'S PENÍNSULA!! WAR,

he had nothing to do w,th the expedition ;that my instructions pointed himout as a volnnteer only. But immediately after, 'in the hearing of all diddeclare it to be bis opinión that the island was not, tenable.
• i"^S íYndei'st°od it was intended to form an estnblishment on the largerisland, Ijudged itproper to retire from it for a short time and destroy theremanís of the castle, which might induce the enemy to withdraw from theworks he had thrown up, and thereby afford our all'yan opportunitv when-ever he chose to oceupy them again, to fortify himself without molestation •
and this supposition it has appeared was well grounded. But while the"ruins of the castle stood, it was an object of jealousy to the French • norwould they in my opinión have quitted the ground they occupied, nor theSpaniards have been enabled to settle themselves, had" this measure not
been adopted. Itherefore gave orders for embarking the guns and storesIfneeessary, Icould say much more on the subject of this most extra-ordinary letter ;the few remarks Ihave made will,Ithink, be sufficientAs an act of courtesy to Colonel Green, on landing the marines, Idirectedthe marine officers to receive their orders from him; but military aid wasnot neeessary, for you may recollect before the expedition sailed on your
informmg me that General Lacy had offered some Spanish troops, and ask-ing how manyIthought would be neeessary, my answer was,

'
about forty•'

and 1have no hesitation in declaring that without the assistance of even asmg.e soldier, the castle would have fallen into our hands as speedily
as itdid on this oceasion." J

Section III.

Captain Coáringtorís Orders to Captain Adam of the Invincible.
"July 1, 1811.

"You are hereby directed, in consequence of a representation made teme by General Doyle, to proceed towards Majorca inseareh of the Spanishfrigates Prueba, Diana, and Astrea, which the general reports to be going
to that island (contrary to orders) with the treasure, archives of the pro-vinee, and the vessels laden with stores and ammunition destined for themland fortresses of Catalonia, together with the officers and soldiers whichwere saved from Tarragona, and which are required to join the army im-mediately Upon meeting them you are to deliver the aecompañying
order for them to return here, and you are, ifneeessary, to enfoi-ce obe-dience."

Captain Codrington to Sir Charles Cotton.
"VillaNueva, July 3, 1811.

"Ishould feel the more hurt by being driven to adopt such a measure
had not the whole conduet of the Prueba and Diana made their captains adisgraee to the situation they hold. These two frigates remained quiet
spectators of the British squadron engaging the batteries of the enemy onthe 22d of last month, and never attempted to give any assistance to* the
garrison, except by now and then sending a gun-boat to'join those mannedby the English. They did not assist in the embarkation of the numberlesswomen, children, and wounded soldiers, until goaded into it by the ordersof General Contreras, after Ihad already sent, above two thousand to this
place; and even when Ihad no longer' any transports for their reception,
the captain of the Prueba refused to receive some wounded officers."
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Ditto lo Ditto. "
July 18, 1811"

Icannot describe to yon the difliculties whichIhave been put to by the
misconduct of all the Spanish ships and vessels of war whichIhave had to
communicate with upon the coast, withexception of the Astrea frigate and
the Paloma corvette. Inthe others Ihave seen neither courage to oppose
the enemy nor humanity to alleviate the distresses of their countrymen.""
Ihave heard also that the Algesiras, which lately arrived at Arens, has

landed the stores and ammunition, with which she was charged, at the risk
of their falling into the hands of the enemy, and has quitted the station 1"

Section IV

Captain Codrington to Sir E. Pellew.
"July 12, 1811."

General Milans is collecting a mixture of troopB, consisting of those who
nave escaped the enemy.

"
"

He speaks loudly of his indifference to a command, while he boasts that
ifhe were captain-general he would raise fortythousand men and clear the
country ofthe enemy! But in the midst of his disgusting rodomontade it
is not difficult to seo that self-interest is the mainspring of all his actions,
and that instead of raising an army he is more likely, by the system he has
adopted, to shake the stability of that w-hich is still left for the defence of
the priucipality."

Captain Codrington to Sir H. Wellesley.
"September 1,1811"

The affair of General Milans', (namely, the sending of corn to Barce-
lona under his passport,) whichImentioned to you in my last prívate let-
ter, is still involved inmvstery, whichIhope however to penétrate upon
mv return to Arens de Mar. The Mataro papers reported that two soldiers
were shot and a serjennt flogged at Arena for suffering corn to pas. th. Ir
guard at, Mongat on its way to Barcelona. The faet of the punishnient i.-I
believe trulv stated, but tlíe cause no less falsely, entirely as Isuspect with
the view of terminating my investigation into this nefarios* traffic. Gen-
eral Lacy, instead of answering my letter. refers me by word of mouth to
the junta, and the deputation from' the junta, who went to Mataro (a. th.-v
a-suied me) purposely to invostigate the business. now tell me that it is au
affair purelv military, ar.d refer me to General Milans himself."

Section V

Extract Jrom a Minute made by Captain Codrington."
Mattaro July 6, 1811"

Colonel O'Ronan, aid-de-camp to the Marquis ofCampo Verde, arrived,
and informed me that he carne from the Marquis, who was on his march-to
this town or Arens, for the purpose of embarking all the infantry not Cata-
lans, and the whole of the remaining cavalry, leaving the horses on the
beach. Colonel O'Ronan said this deterniination was the result of a junta,
composed of the Marquis, General St. Juan. General Caro, General Miranda,
the general of artillery,Brigadier Santa Cruz. Velaseo, and Sarsfield ;that
litar the thiug had be'en proposed and discussed a long time, Sarsfield was
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the flist t, give h,s vote, that be rose from his seat and said, 'any officerwb, could give such an opinión must be a traitor to his couníry Lá thatt«Z I'!dTWn T°UklSta "d W fa,W''Íth the Principality.' E
y;eryotherpfaredZt s-r nr''a,'y,0plnÍOn'eXCfpt the

****
(H afterwa&a a£

fied and yet It
" ?"? s"PJ>r.ted Sa >'sli«ld ). who thought withSai-

ais InJtf he allowed himself to be led on by the other gener-áis In short, itappears he was resolved to abandon the principality.1 told him, without hesitation, that to embark the Valencians Ifelt a

2°£££LTfrtto kingdrof

«íe army ofCa ,1o,,í A
7 *"*

UP°n no account to «mba*tne army ot Catalonia, and thus beeome a party concerned in the abandonment ofa provinee Iliad been sent to protecV-iphe colonel, who could n"¿venture on shore again lest he should be murdered by the inhabitante of
MiW'b t V,^,been the beal 'er of a comniissionto arrest BrigadierMilans about a month ago, sent to the marquis my answer."

*
UZaaier

Extract from a minute of information given bv the Barón dEróles.

¡«wS'Sn TílfÜf*****»*"!°f CaWoni^by ftelt t /. ., othc.e,s'of which the Marquis of Campo Verde was nre.i

tI1 . *'but that tbe moment the army passld the frontier

1id du tZ,r S?*™^ S0Ught hlm.' could not find> b«t met one of hisaid-du-eamps, by whom he wrote to him to say what had oceurred bnt

Extractfrom General Doyle's letter after seeing the above.'
The Valencian división, that is to say, two thousand four hundred of the

Captain Codrington to the Marquis of Campo Verde."
Blake, Jtdy 5, 1811.

Ta,~a
e ¡nhr^lt?\T f**hl the Valencian división out oflairagona, in breach of the terms by which Ibound myself when T tn-amAtcu-11 yourself broke the &****™b>- STOdS&srss

Extract from Captain Codrington 's papers.
"Minute of a conferece between Generáis Caro and Miranda withGeneral Doyle and myself this.day.
"About eight o'clock Generáis Caro and Miranda cam^Wi^h.»
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Blake. After being seated in the cabín with General Doyle and myselfGeneral Caro begged General Doyle would explain to me/that they were3ome ,n consequence of my promise, to request Iwould embni-k thedivisión of \ alendan troops which Ihad brought fromPeniscola. Idesiredto know what prom.se General Caro understood me to have made

*
Heanswer ed, that Iwould take the above troops back to Valencia. Ideniedpositiyely that Ihad made any promise to re-embark them ifthey shouldever jom the Marquis of Campo Verde, although Ihad deeply 'pledeedmyself to restore them to General O'Donnel if thty joined in a sortie fiomthe garrison, whichIwas very confident would be decisive of its success.Ithen referred General Miranda to a similar explanation, which Igave tohim, through General Doyle, on the day after our quitting Pcmiscolawhen he had said he was ordered, both by bis written instructions and byverbal explanation from General O'Donnel, not to land within the garison

General Miranda instantly repeated that so he was ;upon which general
Doyle, to whom he had shown those instructions joinllvwithmyself afterleaving Tarragona for Villa Nueva, when under a difficultyas "to hów heshould proceed referred him to them again, when itnppearing that he wastherein positiyely ordered

'
desembarcar en la plaza de Tarragona

'
GeneralDoyle stopped."

General Miranda.
'
Ab ! but read ou.'"

General Doyle. 'No, sir, there is the positive proof of your reeeivinesuch an order. e"
General Miranda.

'Well, but rend on.'"
General Doyle. <No sir. This (pointing to the paper) is the positive proofof your receiving such an order, which we wanted to establish, because youposmvely denied ,t.'"
UP0

",this Gene '-al Caro, shrugging up his shoulders, said, "He was notaware of there bemg any such order." And General Miranda again request-
ed General Doyle would read on."

General Doyle.
'
For what purpose V

"General Miranda. 'Toprove that Iam not to shut myself up witlithedivisión in the plaza de Tarragona.'"
General Doyle.

'
There is no occasion, sir, for any proof of that. for itwas a part of the very stipulation made by Captain' Codrington when heetrongly pledged himself to General O'Donnel.'"

General Doyle continued.
—"

And now, General Caro, that we haveproved to you that General Miranda had orders to land in Tarragona, andthat Captain Codrington is bound by no such proinise as you had imagined,
Imust inform you that he has beeii eight days upon the coast with all theships of wnr and transporta which are want'ed for other serviees, for the
aole purpose of embarking these troops ;and he desires me to add that in
consideratiou of what is due to the liberal and exemplarv assistance affordedby General O'Donnel and Valencia in aid of Taragona, but not at all ou
account of any pledge he has been said to have given, that he will usethe sanie exertion in re-enibarking and restoring the troops which he would
have done ifso bound by his word of honor.'

"

Mr. Wellesley to Lord Wellesley.

'
The morning of the 80Ü1 of June.a few hours after the arrival of the

British squadron and Spanish vessels in the roadstead of Villa Nueva, five
thonsand French infantry and fivehundred cavalry surprised the place bv
a night mareh, and seized all the pro|>erly of Tarragona, which had been

"
July 28, 1811.
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sent before the siege. Twenty-five thousand dollars for each of the next
three months was demanded, but no violence or plunder allowed. Eróles
narrowly escaped. Lacy, appointed to command in Cataionia, arrived
lst July at Villa Nueva, the 6th went to Ingualada to join Campo
Verde.""

Desertion in the army at Mattaro has been carried to a most alarming
extent since the fall of Tarragona ;the first night fifteen hundred men dis-
appeared, nearly three hundred cavalry had likewise set off towards
Aragón;and these desertions are to be attributed to the gross neglect and
want of aetivity on the part of the officers

'—'
The only división that keeps

together in any tolerable order is that of General Sarsfield, of about two
thousand men."

—"
He had however disputes with Eróles, and the people

called for the Íatter to lead them."

No. VI.

Section I.

POLITICAL STATE OF KING JOSEPH.

SPANISH MINISTER'S COMPLAINTS OF THE FRENCH <3ENERALS.

From the councillor of state, Mariano Luis Orguijo, to Ring Joseph."Madrid, 22 Juillet, 1810."
Sirb,

—
Le commissaire royal de Cordoue me mande que le due deDalmatie luia fait éerire officiellement de ne remettre aucune somme d'ar-

gent é. la capitale, lors méme que le ministre des finances le demanderait,
jusqu'á ce que les dépenses de l'armée des régimens qu'on leve et des em-
ployés de la provinee, <fec, fussent pleinement couverts. et que le duc pren-di-ait les mesures convenables, dans le cas que cette détermination ne füt
pas suivie."

"Madrid, 3 Agosto de 1810."
Le general Sebastiani a fait voir au commissaire royal á Grenade unordre du duc de Dalmatie, qui luienjoint de lamaniere la plus expresse' de

le mettre en état d'arrestation si pour le 1er Aoút luí et le préfet de Malagane mettent au pouvoir de Sebastiani quatre millions de réaux. L'exorbi-
tance de cette somme, pour une provinee qui a déjá payé son contingent,
et le court terme de huit jours designé pour le payement, donnent á croire
que cette serme une fois livrée on en demandera une plus forte. Selon
toutes les apparences et d'aprés les conversations pardeuliéres, ils'a^it de
profiter de l'absence du roipour mettre les Andalousies sur le'méme'pied
que les provinces de Biscaye, Burgos, ifec. IIse peut néanmoins qu'on ait
voulu inspirer ees craintes dans des idees tout-á-fait différentes. Quoi qu'il
en soit il serait scandaleux <le voir un commissaire qui représente la per
sonne du roi arrété dans une de ses provinces?'

From Mariano Luis Orquijo to King Joseph." Madrid, 7 Aoút, 1810."
Monsieur d'Aranza m'écrit en date du 22 Aoút dans une lettre p»»-ti< u-



liére les paroles suivantes, en les soulignant pour mieux fixer l'attention :'
Le maréchal Soult est tres contení, mais il. ne Jera usage de son autorité que

pour le bien :ilaime le roi et la nation :ce pays luiplaii beaucoup. "

Ditto to ditto.
"Madrid, 13 Aoút, 1810."

Parmi les lettres que m'a porté le courrier d'Andalousie arrive hier, j'en
remarque une de Monsieur Aranza écrite dans un style étudié et que je
soupconne rédigée d'aceord avec le duc de Dalmatie. C'est un panégyrique
a la louange de ce maréchal dans lequel monsieur d'Aranza porte aux núes
l'intelligence et le zéle du duc de Dalmatie dans la partie administrative ;
la considération qu'il donne aux autorités Espagnoles ;son extreme adresse
á manier les esp.rits, et l'habileté de ses dispositions militaires, dans un pays
couvert d'insurgés. M. d'Aranza lerriiine en formant le voeu que le maré-
chal ne soit aucunement troublé dans l'exéeution de ses plans, et que le sort
de l'Andalousie soit mis entiérement á sa discrétion."

Ditto to ditto.

"
Par ma correspondance avec l'Andalousie j'ai appris;de Cordoue :que

M.Ánguloa regu les lettres qui l'appellent á Madrid, et qu'il se dispose á
suivre le grand eonvoi sortí de Seville le 11 du courant. De Seville:
qu'un corsaire Franjáis s'étant emparé d'un paquebot qui allait de Cádiz á
Alicante, on y avait trouvé entr'autres dépéches une lettre de Cnmpmany,
£rand partisan des Anglais, et un des Coryphées de la révolution. II
avouait á son ami, don Anselmo Rodríguez de Ribas, intendant de Parinée
du centre, qui s'était plaint á lui des excés que commettaient certaines
juntes, que Cádiz n'offrait pas un spectacle moins digne de pitié:que les
Anglais qu'il avait appris á connaitre s'arrogeaient peu á peu toute l'auto-
rité: que le commerce libre accordé aux ports d'Amérique excitait a Cádiz un
mécontentement general, et que Venegas allait au Mexique en qualilé de
vice-roi:il parle eu outre de l'arrestalion de plusieurs pei-sonncs connues,
et de la déeonsidération dans laquelle est tombee la régeuce."

"
Madrid, le 23 Aoút, 1810.

From Mariano Luis Orquijo to King Joseph.

"Le Maréchal Victor permet le passage á beaucoup de femmes qui veu-
lent se reunir a leurs maris ;les femmes en contant les dioses telles Cju'elles
\u25a0ont, détruisent bien des erreurs dans lesquelles on a généralement eté en-
tramé par le gonvernenient actueL L'ennemi permit ees jours derniera
1\ntrée dans l'ile á plusieurs femmes quivoulaient passer par Chiclanes pour
se reunir a léurs párente, mais derniérement elles furent contenues a eoups
de cauon, et un boulet emporta la tete de celui <jui les accompagnait. I-e
gouvernement Anglais préside á toutes les operations, et craint cette espéce
de comuiuuieation."

"
Madrid, 27 Septembre, 1810

"Sire,
—

Je suis arrive á Valladolid, oü je n'ai pas trouvé le General Kel-
lermann. IIparait que les Espagnols ont cerne undétachement de Franjáis
qui se trouve á la Puebla de Senabria, et que ce general y est alié pour le
uébloquer. Les guerilles ont été hier aux portes de Valladolid, et ily a
cinq á six jours que soixaute-dix Franjáis ont été détruits á Villalon;la ter-

" Valladolid, le 11 Aoút, 1810.
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reur s'est emparée de tous les esprits, et l'on croit que trois cents hommes
ne suffisent pas pour faire passer un courrier : malgré cela, je partirai
demain, escorté par deux cents hommes avec un eonvoi de prisonniers de
Ciudad Rodrigo, dont le nombre n'est pas considerable, parce qu'ici on leui
accorde laliberté moyennant une somme qu'on regle avec le General Kel
lermann pour les frais de la guerre."

Toutes les autorités du pays sont venues me visiter, et me consulter sur
la conduite qu'elles doivent teñir, depuis les derniers ordres du General
Kellermann pour qu'elles n'obéissent ni ne correspondent avec d'autre
autorité que la sienne. C'est la chancellerie qui se trouvé plus embarras-
sée que toute autre, parce qu'elle ne peut concilier l'nduiinistration de la
jnstice au nom de votre majesté avec l'impossibilité de eorrespondre avec
son ministre."

Je n'ai pas regu le moindre égard du General Dufrene qui est á la place
du General Kellermann. IIne m'a pas visité, ni méme accordé un faetion-
naire;tout le monde s'en est apercu, et cette co-iduite a confirmé l'opi-
nion que l'on a congue que votre majesté ne régne point dans ce pays. J'ai
taché de détruire une idee qui décourage les véritables sujets de votre ma-
jesté, et soutient les esperances de ses ennemis. Les généraux ne s'aper-
foivent pas du mal qu'ils produisent en faisant croire que le service de l'em-
pereur et ses intéréts peuvent étre en contradiction avec ceux de votre
majesté.

"Si le General Dufrene s'était borne á ne rien faire pour faciliter mon
voyage, j'aurais moins de motifs de plainte contre lui, mais ila retenu Tes-
corte de cavalerie que le General Tilly m'avait donnée. De toutes les
manieres, sire, je ferai tout, ce qui sera en mon pouvoir pour aeeélérer mon
voyage, et repondré á la confiance avec laquelle votre majesté a daigné me
distingue!' "

Le Marquis Almenara."

Orquijo to Joseph, relating his Conference with the French Ambassador
[Extract.]

\u25a0' Madrid, Aoút 22, 1810."
Je lui dis de s'adresser sur ees deux points au ministre des relations ex-

térieures; ilme répondit qu'un désagrément qu'on éprouvait avec lui était
l'obligation de lui donner á tout bout de champ des notes écrites, qu'á Vil-
loría il l'avait eompromis en présentant á votre majesté ees notes comme
officielles, que le bon vieux duc (ce sont ses propres expressions) étourdis-
sait dans l'inst.ant, qu'il n'entendait point, ou ne voulait point enten-
dre ce qu'on lui disait, et qu'il demandait qu'on lui donnat par écrit ce
qui n'était pas néeessaire d'écrire. Je lui répétais toujours qu'il devait
s'adresser au duc puisque c'était le seul canal par lequel il dovait diri-
ger ses demandes, que je ne me meláis point de ees affaires, et que je
n'eu entretiendrais votre majesté, á moins que votre majesté ne m'en pai'lát
la premiére, mais comme simple particulier je l'assurai de l'inviolabilité des
promesses de votre majesté et, de ses idees libérales. L'ambassadeur ajouta
que dans la matinée du jour de St. Napoleón, et les jours suivants le Gene-
ral Belliard, Borelli, et leurs alentours avaient parlé fort mal des expres-
sions de votre majesté 8ur ses premiers devoirs, et qu'il ne doutaitpas qu'ils
n'en eussent écrit á París ;qu'il n'avait pas pu se dispenser de transmettre
á sa cour oes paroles ;mais qu'il les avaitprt'sentées comme une consequence
du premier discours tenu par votre majesti et une nuance néeessaire pour
adoucir le manvais effet qu'avait produit ici l'article du Moniteur sur les
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niots de l'einpereur au duc de Berg. Je le luiavais presenté de cette maniere
en sortant de l'appartement de votre majesté, et je lui montrai en méme
temps un rnpport venu de la Navarre dans lequel on dépeignait le facheux
étát de ce royanme en proie auxexcés des bandes de brigands et aux dilap-
idations des gouvernemens militaires. Si l'ambassadeur a écrit dans ees
termes comme ilme l'a dit, autant par honneur que par attachement á votre
majesté, á son pays et, au notre, ila bien remph ses devoirs. Quoiqu'il en
soit, je me suis cru obligé de donner connaissance á votre majesté de ees
faits ainsi que de la surprise que, selon l'ambassadeur, a causé á l'empereur
et au minutero Franjáis le silenee du Duc de Santa Fé qui ne s'explique sur
riéli. L'ambassadeur se plaint d'avoir été compromis par lui,car á sa de-
mande et cn consequence des conversations fréquentes qu'il eut avec lui
pendant les trois jours qu'il passa á Madrid, ilécrivit á sa cour que le Duc
de Santa Fé était charge de négocier sur la situation de votre majesté et
celle de notre pays, que l'ambassadeur lui-métnc disait ne pouvoir pas
durer. C'cst á la lettre ce que c'est ditentre l'embassadeur et moi, <tc. <fcc."

Orquijo to Joseph.
"Madrid, le 13 Novembre, 1810."

Monseur Pereyra a reju du maréchal Soult une réponse extrénicment
aigre. Ce Commissaire roya] persiste dans son opinión que les mesures
indiquées par le duc de Dalmatie pour l'approvisíonnement de l'nrmée
ne rempliront pas le but qu'il se propose ;mais le maréchal veut étre obéi.
D'un autre cote le General Sebastiani l'a contraint á lui donner onze cent
mille réaux. Place entre ees deux éeueils, Monsieur Pereyra a perdí,
courage et demande á votre majestié de le rappellcr á Madrid. Le General
Dufour a pris le commnndement de Grenade."

Mariano Luis de Or quijo."

Ditto to ditto.
"Madrid, 19 de Decnnbre, 1810.

"Monsieur le Compte de Montarco étnit le 11 courant á Manzannres il
m-écrit que les habitans de la Manche se plaignent de ce que les troupes
qui retrouvent dans la provinee ne les protégent pas autant que leur nombre
le leur permet, que les brigands viennent leur enlever leura grains pour
les transporter dans les royaumes de Valence et de Murcie, ou dans l'Kstre-
madoure. Ils ernignent une disette et de désirent nrdemmement qu'il se
formo de trrands depots de grains dans des places á l'abri des iucursious des
partís d'insurgés. Les conimandants des troupes Franjaises sont d'une
c..i_---noo et d'une hanteur insupportables, et les rapports fails au Compte
de Montarco par toutes les autorités légales du pays contírnient complette-
ment ceux que l'íntendant de la Manche ne cesse de faire aux divers minis-
téres depuis plusieurs mois." "

Madrid, le Fivrier, 1811
'Sire,

—
Le préfet de Santander me remét, en date du 16 Janvier copie

des offices qu'il a rejus pour la reunión de cette provinee au gouvernement
inilitairc de Biscaye. J'ai l'honneur de les mettre sous les ycux de votre
majesté en luiobservaut que cette mesuré a été pris sur la proposition du
General Caffarelli."

On a demandé au préfet de Santander un état des employés civils et
militaires, des moines, du clergé, et des appointcmcns dont ils jouissent.
I!croit en consequence que des attributions ainsi que celles des employés
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seront nuiles des que la provinee sera gouvernée á l'instar de celle de Bis-
caye. IIajoute que lui et les chefs prineipaux de l'admiiiistration sont de-
cides á ne travailler que sous les ordres de votre majesté et demandent avec
instance que votre majesté ue les abandonne pas."

Le sous-préfet de Logrogne me dit en date du 22 Janvier que l'opinion
publique s'est améliorée depuis qu'on y a appris les nouvelles du Portugal,
et qu'on y connait le peu de moyens de defense qu'offre Valence dans le
désordre extreme qui yrégne. La Riofa ne renferme plus de bandes com-
plettes, d'insurgés, mais on y trouvé encoré quelques brigands épars et des
voleurs de grands chemins. "

Mariano Luis de Orquijo."

Section II.—(Relating to Joseph's Abdication.)

Vindication of the King.
Le Ministre Secrétain d'Etat á Monsieur le Duc de Santa Fé, et cn son absence

a Monsieur leMarquis dAlmenara.

Palais de Madrid, le 12 Septembre, 1810, Pars.
Excellence,

—
Le courrier de cabinet, Don Martin Estenoz, qui partit d

Paris le 22 Juillet, a remis les lettres éerites par V.E. le méme jour et lescopies de celles que vous envoyátes le 19 Juin par le courrier Alvarez, qui
furent interceptées. Le roi les a lúes avec la plus grande attention, et
aprés s'étre bien penetré des communications faites a V. E. au nom de l'em-pereur, par monsieurle duc de Cadore, et les observations particuliéres de
ce ministre, S. M. desirant détruire d'un seul trait,les craintes et la défiance
que des personnes, tout au moins mal instruites, se sont efforcées d'inspirer,
m'a ordonné d'entrer cn explication sur tous les points dont elles traitent!Mais je dois avant tout faire connaitre á V.E. que le roi s'est montré satis-
fait de la juste interprétation donnée ases idees, et á ses sentimens dans la
réponse que V. E. a faite au duc de Cadore, relativement á la protection
dont S. M. I.desire que le commerce Franjáis jouisse dans les réglemens desdouanes, en offrant d'assurer une faveur reciproque dans ses états aux pro-
diictions d'Espagne. L'empereur ne peut ignorer les vues liberales de son
auguste frére, et si S. M. I. a été exactement informée sur ce point, elle
saura que, des son avénement au troné, le roi a ecarte bien des obstacle's op-
posés á ¡'industrie Franjaise qu'il s'agit de favoriser encoré par de nouvelles
dispositions.

11 est bien douloureux pour le roi d'avoir á se justifier de plusieurs impu-
tations auxquelles on a dú croire puisqu'on les a communíquées a V. E.
L'une d'elles est que le roi a rendu á leurs propriétaires, ou disposé á son
gré, d'une partie des biens confisques par l'empereur. Cela supposerait de
la part de S. M. unoubli de la parole donnée á l'empereur de ne'se méler en
aucune maniere de ees eonfiscations :mais e'est un infame impostaré, et son
auteur mérite un chatiment exemplaire. Qu'on cite une propriété un pouce
de terrain confisqué par l'empereur, et dont on ait disposé :on ne le ponrrapoint si dans une puré question de fait on en impose ainsi á l'empereur, que
sera ce lorsqu'on ne parle que par eonjeetures et présomption? Le roí
porte á un si haut degré son respect pour les déerets de eonfiscations de S.
M. I. qu'ayant besoin d'un des édifiees qui y sont compris pour y placer des
établissemens pnblies, iln'a méme pas voulu s'en servir provisoirement. S.
M. n'a-t-elle pas, en consequence le droit de réclamer, pour son honneur, la
punition de ses detracteurs? S. M. I.s'est expliquée sur la direction donnée
a la guerre et la maniere dont elle a été faite.
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Lempereur ecrivitau roí pour lui représente,- la lenteur des operation»

et 1 inaction des armées. Aussitót S. M. entreprit la conquéte de l'Andalou-
sie. Le duc de Cadore a dit á V.E que la soumissiou de cette provinee
était íllusoire, pmsqu'elle se trouvé inondée de partis d'insnrgés et de(Mudes de brigands. Qu'on considere la vaste étendue de l'AndaloiUie • le
petit nombre de troupes Franjaises que l'obstination de Cádiz permét d'vrepondré ;les piéges de toute espéce que tendent les Anglais et leurs con-tinuelles attaqués: qu'on pareóme l'histoire de toutes les guerres contrel'Angleterre et l'on verra qu'indépendamment des vingt mille Espagnols
constamment stationés a St Rocq, ilétait encoré néeessaire d'entretenfi micette cóté un nombre considerable de troupes pour les opposer aux entre-
priscs partidles de l'ennemi. Si ees précautions étaient indispensables dansun tenis de calme et de tranquillité, qu'elles doivent étre les esperances et
les moyens de l'Angleterre dans l'agitation actuclle de l'Espagne et lanaturede la guerre dont elle est la théátre ? Le roi peut diré avec verité, que la
conquéte militaire et morale de l'Andalousie est son ouvrnge, et que ses
paroles, sa conduite, et les sages mesures qu'il a prises, ont.preparé la tran-
quillité dont elle jouit. S. M. ya organisé des gardes civiques chargées dedéfendre leurs foyers, et malgré le voisinage de cette provinee avec 1'Est re-
maduro et les instigations continuelles de la junte de Cádiz et des Anglais,l'Andalousie renferme beaucoups moins de partis ou de bandea d'im-iirgés
que la Castile, la Biseaye, et la Navarre, qui ont 'été places sous le «gime
militaire. Enfin l'on trouvé en Andalousie une organisntion complette de
compagines de miguclettes qui veillent á la tranquillité des villcs et á la
súreté des cheniins. Leurs services sont tellcment útiles que le maréchal
duc de Dalmatie a donné le plus de développement possible á cette inslitu-
tion.

Si l'Andalousie n'est pas entiérement pacifiée, si la junte de Cádiz existe
encoré, et si les Anglais y exercent leur fatale influence, on doit l'attribuer
en grande partie aux machinations et aux trailles ourdics par la junte et
l'Angleterre au moment oü parvint á leur connaissancc le décrct du 8 Fé-
vrier qui établit des gouvernemens militaires dans la Navarro, la Di-,ave.l'Arragon, et la Catalogue. Quelques gouverneurs Franjáis avant traite
ees provinee commes si elles étaient absolument détaché.-s de la monarchie,
les membres de la junte de Cudiz et les Anglais en profitérent pour soiilHer
de nouveau le feu de la discorde et refute,- les expressions du ro, qui répétait
sans cesse,

'
Que la nation conserverait son intégrité et son indipi-ndanee :

que ses institutions s'amélioreraient sous la protection d'un ttóne soutenu
par les relations intimes du roi avec l'empereur ;quYlle ii'uuiait á com-
hattre que l'ennemi qui voulait s'arroger l'empiro excliulfdes niers.' Yoila
le sens (ju'on a toujours donné cn Espagne aux niots indépendance et inté-
grité. Ce langage est celui dont s'est servi S. M. I. non svulement avee lea
Espagnols, mais á la face de l'univers: ilne peut done étre odieiix ni criniinel
dans la bouehe du roi. Mais combien n*est-il pas démenti par la conduite
de certains gouverneurs qui paraissent s'obstiuer a prolonger 1'insurrection
d'Espagne, a l'annihiler ou la détruire plutót qu'á la soumettre! cardaos
plusieurs endroits on ne se contente pas d'exclure toute idee de l'atttorité du
roi en faisant administrer la justice au num de l'empereur, mais ce qui est
pire, on a exige que les tribunaux civils de Valladolid et de Valencia pré-
tas. ent serment de fidélité et d'obéissance á S. M. I.comme si la nation Es-
pegnole n'uvait pas de roi.

Monsieur le duc de Cadore se plaint de l'indulgence dont on en a usé en
Andalousie ;S. M. a montré contre ses enemis, dans les cham|>* de Talavera
et Ocaña, toute la fermeté de son caractére :mais serait-il juste, convicn
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drait-il á ses inléréts et aux vues de l'empereur, que S. M. deployát de la
rigueur eontre des vaincus, des prisonniers qui doivent étre ses sujets? Si
le maréchal Ney eut suivi ce genéreux exemple dans les villcs de Galice oü
ilfut reju á bras ouverts, et n'eut pas au contraire opprimé et saccagé, cette
provinee, elle serait heureuse et soumise, et non livrée aux maux de l'insur-
rection comme tant d'autres á qui Ion a fait éprouver le méme sort. Cette
conduite de S. M. dans des pays soumis est vraisemblablement ce que le duc
Cadore appelle des graces accordées aux insurges de préférence aux per-
sonnes attachées á la cause du roi. Les insurges n'ont obtenu d'autres
graces que celles qui leur furent offertes dans les proelamations pour dissiper
rerreur dans laquelle les Anglais les avaient induits. Si le sequestre mis
sur les biens invendus de quelques habitans ou refugies, a été levé poste-
rieurement, cet exemple d'indulgence a eu d'heureux résultats, puisqu'il a
attiré un grand nombre de personnes á l'obéissance du roi:et qu'on ne
croye pas que ees individus n'aient point subi le chatiment qui leur était dü
pour le retard qu'ils ont mis á se soumettre, cars s'ils possedaient des billets
royaux, illes ont perdues pour ne les avoir pas presenté á tems au timbre
see ;et s'ils sont porteurs d'autres titres de créances sur l'état, ils doivent,
pour les valider, solliciter un décret particulier.

Les avantages de la formation des corps Espagnols sont á la portee de
tout le monde :leur presence a influé plus qu'on ne pense sur l'heureuse
issue de la bataille d'Oeaña et de l'expédition d'Andalousie. Eu yadmettant
un grand nombre d'offieiers, on est parvenú á éloigner de l'insurrection des
hommes inquiets qui seraient devenus chefs de brigands, et tout en avouant
que la desertion a eu lieu parmi les soldats, et qu'il en est resulté quelques
maux, on peut hardiment affirmer que la somme des biens est infiniment
plus grande, et qu'il n'y a pas de moyens qu'on ne doive employer pour faire
revenir de son égarement une nation de douze millions d'aines qu'il n'est
pas facile d'assujettir par la forcé des bayonnettes, et dont on veut d'ailleurs
faire une amie et une alliée.

On a parlé du mauvais emploi des ressources de l'Espagne, et du dénue-
ment dans lequel ont été laisées les troupes Franjaises. Les soldats ont eu
en Espagne des vivres en abondanee : les hópitaux Franjáis ont été les
mieux pourvus, ila fallu pour cela exiger des contributions extraordinaires
et des emprunts forces, et vaincre le grand obstacle de l'intereeptation des
communications de provinee á provinee, et souvent de villeá ville. L'Espagne
se trouvé divisé en gouvernemens militaires de sorte que S. M. est á peine
maltre de la capitale ot de sa banlieue: n'est ce done point par une espéce
de miracle qu'elle y fait subsister de troupes, et qu'elle y soutient des hópi-
taux. Les gouverneurs Franjáis imposent, il est vrai, des contributions
extraordinaires sur leurs provinces, mais ils les vexent et les ruinent, et
eertes ce n'est pas Llle moyen de les maintenir dans l'obéissance, ni un ex-
emple bien attrayant pour les provinces soulevées :cette ressource est
d'ailleurs précaire et insuffisante comme le prouvera bientót l'expérience.
S. M. se flatte-de ce que les intentions de l'empereur en faveur de la nation
seraient mieux remplies et ses troupes mieux dirigées, si toutes celles qui
sont en Espagne étaient sous ses ordres, et si les propositions qu'il a faites
á son auguste frere étaient aeceptées. Le duc de Cadore a evalué áplussieurs
millions les eonfiscations des marchandises Anglaises, et l'enlévement de
l'argenterie des églises et des couvents qu'on aurait dü faire en Andalousie.
Les eonfiscations eurent lieu par ordre des généraux Franjáis á leur entrée
dans chaqué ville,et si leur valeur fut exagerée, dans le principe, pour don-
ner plus d'éclat aux entreprises militaires, on i^^onnut,des qu'on en vint á
l'examen l'erreur dans laquelle on était tombé ;et dans le fait comment ne



pas apperjevoir qu'apré? la bataille d'Ocaña ¡'invasión d'Andalousie de-
vant étre prévue, chacun avait grand soin de faire refluer les mnrchandises
confiscables sur les points les plus capables de resistance, afin de les mettre
hoi-s de la portee du vainqueur. L'argenterie d'église a beaucoup d'nppar-
ence et fort peu de valeur. On a pris dans les couvents, oü il en restait
•res peu, ainsi que dans les églisses toute celle qui n'a pas été jugée néees-
saire pour la deeence du cuite, et comme le roi ne voulait ni ravager ni
détruire, mais bein pacifier et conserver, ila dú régler sa conduite sur ce
principe.

Monsieur le duc de Cadore parle de dépenses, c'est vraiment une fatalité
quil soit si mal informé de faits généralement connus. Le trésor publie est
ouvert á quiconque voudra s'assuror de la vérité. On y verra que S. M. a
reju á peine chaqué mois le einquiéjne de l'assignntion de la liste civile:
qu'il a dú se reduire á la plus strict économie, et que non seulement il s'est
vu faute de pouvoir donner anx acteurs une légére avance, dans l'obligation
de supprimer le théátre Italien qui était son unique délnssenicnt, mais en-
coré de vendré sa vaisselle platte, et de se défaire des dioses les plus neces-
saires á l'ornement de sa cour. Aussi dans le répas que S. 51. donna, á
l'occasion de la féte de l'empereur, á ses ministres, aux grands officiers de la
couronne, et á l'ambassadeur de FYanee, la table fut elle servio en fayence
scmblable a celle qu'avait S. M. au camp de Boulogne. Certninenient I'em-
barras et la confusión que cette excessive simplicité causnit au roi n'aura
pas échappé á l'ambassadeur. Aumilieu de tant de privations, et dans une
situation aussi contraire á sa dignité S. M.a la douleur de voir que sos min-
istres, la conseil d'état, les tribunaux de la espítale, et les employés civils, qui
sont en petit nombre, ne perjoivent pas leur traitement depuis plus de jept
mois. Co sont lá les favcurs que S. M. a dispenses avec tant de prodigalité
Le roi a donné il est vi-ai, quelques cédulés aux -ofliciers de sa maison, et á
quelques individua attachés ¡lsa personne, pour les aider a acheter des bitns
nationaux: on donne a ees beinfaits le noni de prodigalitié, et d'un nutre
cote l'on se plaint de l'abandon dans lequel S. M. laisse d'autres individua
ce qui serait incompatible avec la fajon de penser du roi et la comíais-
sanees de ses devoirs comme honnne ct comme monarque. C'est Pilinque
chose dont le roipuisse disposer dans la situation oü il se trouvé et outre
le but politique de ees donations, S. M. a cru que e'étnit le seul moyen d'ns-
surer á ees individus une mediocre existence et encoré sa prevoyaucc a ect
égard a-t-elle été trompee car les revenuas des turres et des biens qui se trou-
vent dans les personnes souinises au gouyernemeiit militaire dont les limites
s'étendeut jusqu'aux portes de Madrid, oü ne se payen! pas. tant est grunde
la misére des ferniiers, oü les biens ne s'affennent pas ,1.- i-ruinti- dYxtorsions
de la part des gouverneurs, oü, enfin, les revenus se trouvent absorbes par
les contributions extraordinaires Los fnits sont evidens, ils parlent d'eux-
mémes, et toute personne impartíale peut en faire lYxamen.

Mais il faut qu'elle soit de meilleure foi que celle qui a voulu imputer
ilS. M. Paliénation des biens confisques par l'empereur, et les griefs auxquels
on vient de repondré. S. M. pourrait, á bien plus juste titre, se plaiudrede
la conduite des gouverneurs Franjáis: de celle du general Dufour, par
exemple, qui a exige des dixniembres dont ilcomposa á sa maniere ce con-
seil de Navarre qu'on s'est vu bientót obligé de dissoudre, qu'ils rédigeassent
une addresse á l'empereur dans laquelle ilsdemandaieut á S. M.I.uncode des
lois, et se mettaient á sa discrétion. Trois de ees membres réfusérent de Bgner,
les autres cédérent á la violence. S. M.[lourrait citer encoré une foule d'actes
qui ont exasperé les esprits. fourni d.-s armes á rinsurrection, et donné anx
Anglais des pretextes pour supposer des projets qui n'existent pas, et remire
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laguen-e interminable. Qu'on compte le nombre des bandes de brigands et
d'insurgés en Espagne, et l'on verra combien ils'est accru depuis 1'institution
des gouvernemens militaires. S. M. ne peut elle se plaindre avec anújat de
justice de la situation equivoque dans laquelle elle se trouvé ? qu'on en juge

\u25a0par le fait suivant. Le nouveau ministre de finalices venait d'entrer en
fonction, et il s'agissait déjá de réuni. les plus forts capitalistes de la place
pour les engager á avancer une boíme somme d'argent, lorsque le payeur
de l'armée, Monsieur Crouchart, et l'intendant-général, Monsieur Denniers
assurérent au ministre que des employés venaient de Paris avec des lettres
cachetees qu'ils avaient l'ordra de n'ouvrirqu'á Madrid. On prétendit aussitót
qu'ils devaient se charger del'administration civile, que les rentrées seraient
invariablement affectées á l'entretien et a la soldé de l'armée, et le surplus
seulement á laliste civile. C'était annoncer la dissolution de l'état. Des
bruits de cette nature répandus dans toute la ville par les employés
Franjáis parvenus á la connaissance de l'ambassadeur de S. M. I.et appuyés
par des malveillans qui abondent toujours dans les capitales surtout á la
suite des guerres d'opinions, ne pouvait produire que de malheureux eíiets.
La confiance de ce petit nombre d'hommes qui aurait pn faire des avances
s'eteignit á l'instant, et toutes les portes furent furmées. S. M. ignorait
l'arrivée des nouveaux employés de trésor de France, et iin'a connu comme
le dernier de ses sujets, le contenu des lettres dont ilsétaient porteurs qu'á
leurs ouvertures.

Dans cet état de choses ilest facile de se faire Fideo de la confiance que
peut inspirer le roi, etlorsque S. M. se trouvé hors d'état de faire le bonheur
du pays qu'il doit gouverner et de eoncourir á la réalisation des vues de son
angoste frere :qu'il voit enfin sa dignité avilée, doit on s'étonner qu'il ait
manifesté l'impossibilité de vivre plus long temps dans une situation aussi
précaire ? Monsieur le duc de Cadore tout en recormaissant les liantes
qualités du roi, a prétendu, que les personnes qui approchent S. M. lui ont
conseillé et luiconseillent sans cesse de se main teñir dans l'indépendance de
la France, et que ce principe se suivait avec trop de rigueur. Monsieur le
duc de Cadore sait que S. M.dans ancune époque de sa longue et gloríense
carriére u'a eu besoin de con seils et ne s'est soumis á aucune influence, surtout
s'il s'est agi de détruire

'
son syst eme inalterable d'amitié sincere et éternelle

avec son auguste frere l'empereur ;d'alliance et de bienveillance afiectneuse
envera la nation Espagnole á la tete de laquelle il est place, et dont il
s'efforcera de conserver la splendeur et le bien étre, avec l'indépendance et
l'integrité de territoire. Les vceux les plus constante de son cceur sont que
les deux nations unies entr'elles par les méraes liens que leur monarqnes
concourent d'une maniere uniforme á la felicité commune en forcant leur,
ennemie á abandonner le sceptre des mers.'

Le prince don Fernando, ajoute le duc de Cadore, se preterait á ceder les
provinces qui conviennent á l'empereur et á toutes les conditions qu'il vou-
dra.it lui imposer. Le roine veut entrer en comparaison avec personne ;
mais ilobservera que ce ne fut pas dans ees sentimensni dans cette croyance
qu'il accepta la couronne d'Espagne en déposant celle de Kaples: que
l'empereur nila Erance ne devraient avoir confiances en des cures que la
nation repousserait, et qui ne pourrait avoir d'ailleurs qu'une execution pas^
sagére ;car comme le sait tres bien Monsieur le duc de Cadore, les nations
humiliées dissimulent leur haine en attendant le moment favorable de venger
leurs outrages. Une semblable conduite serait incompatible avec le fa^on
de penser du roi, avec son noble caractére et celui de la nation que S. M.
gouverne. Elle est diamétralement en opposition avec les assurances don-
nees par S. M.I.á la nation Espagnole

'qu'il était néeessaire pour son bon-
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heur qu'elle se régénérat sous sa dynastie et sous le pnnee qu'elle lui don-
nait égal en tout a son auguste personne.' A cette occasion le duc de Cadore
parle du p«.u d'avantages que rapporte á laFrance la guerre d'Espagne en
proportion des sacrifices immenses qu'elle a falta, Certes le roine les ignore
pas, et sa reconnaissance éclatera quand S. M. se trouvera en état de lesrecompensen Dans ce moment cela lui est impossible ;mais S. M. I. pour-
rait mettre le comble a ses bons offices en s'offrant pour garant de l'emprunt
onvert en IIollande sous les mémes conditions que celui de Prusse, ou du
moins en liidonnant son assentiment comme á celui d'Autriehe. S. SL I.
se convaincra facilement que les liens du sang, les relations les plus intimes
et les plus sures d'une étroite amitié entre les deux nations, et enfin la posi-
tion méme de ees armées seront les meilleurs garants de l'exactitude des
remboursements quelques sacrifices qu'ils exigent.

Quant aux avantnges futura que promettent les sacrifices actuéis de la
France, ce serait faire iujure aux lumiéres du duc de Cadore que de la
fatiguer en les luideveloppant. Lorsque S. M. I.crut néeessaire l'estnblisse-
ment en Espagne de sa dynastie, l'expérience lui avait demontre que sur-
venant des troubles dans le nord, ilne pouvait jamáis compter sans ce
changement, sur la súreté d'une de plus importantes frontiéres de son en>-
pire. Un siécle d'amitié presejue non iuterrompue depuis le regne cn
Espagne et en France de la maison de Bourbon, le pacte de famille et la
tournure différente que prirent les relations entre le3 deux pays aprés l'ex-
clusion de la maison d'Autriehe, sont les témoignages les plus authentiques
de l'utilitédes efforts et des sacrifices de la France pendant six ans, aucom-
mencement du siécle dernier. La resistance opiniátre de presque toute
l'Europe et surtout celle de l'Angleterre, qu'elle renouvelle dans cette
guerre avec un plus grand developpement de moyens démontrent l'im-
portance de cet evénement pour la France. Ses meilleurs écrivains poli-
tiques ont indiqué avec la plus grande ciarte lesavantages qui en ont resulte
pour le commerce Franjáis et les richesses qu'il a procúreos a la nation.
Que ne doit elle pas attendre aujourd-|iui de la reunión des deux couronnes
dans la méme famille, de l'analogie de leui-s codos politiques et de leurs insti-
tutions, des qualités d'un roi sage et éelairéqui aime tendrement son auguste
frére et la France, et qui est penetré de la nécessité d'abattre l'orgucil de
l'Angleterre! n'est ce pas leplus grand fruit qu'elle puisse retirer de cette
resolution et de tels resultats ne valent ils pas les sacrifices momentáneos
qu'elle s'impose 1
IIa été b,en sensible pour S. M. que les rapporta mensongers de personnes

peu interessées á l'union et á l'amitié des deux fréres et des deux pavs, ayant
pu inspirer a S. M. 1. un seul instaut de doutes. Quoique le roi a deja écrit
a l'empereur son auguste frére, S. M. veut que V. E. ou en votre absence le
marquis d'Almenara, rcmette une copie de cette lettre a Monsieur le duc de
Cadore, dans l'espérance que V. E. devdoppera á S. M. I.avec sa sagacité
ordinaire les canses qui ont onflué sur la conduite du roi dans les atfaires
d'Espagne, que S E lui depeindra l'état véritable de la nation, et qu'elle
contribuera de cette manare ál'éxécution des intention» des deux monarques
qui n'ont été et oui ne peuvent étre que les mémes.

Le ministre secrétaire d'état,
(Signé) Mariano Luis D'Obquijo.

Letters fromKing Joseph to his ministers.

10 Février, 1811.
Je suis peiné qu.; l'empereur ait cru néeessaire d'employer des formes
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diplomatiques avec mol et méme avec la reine. Qu'ilme fasse clairementconnoitre sa volonté et je n'aurai ríen de plus agréab™ que d m'y <2former pmsqu el e ne peut étre ni compatible avé^c mon £onneto cL m¡paroit inseparable du sien, comme mon intérgt T » f,;í !<- •qí-
™*
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la présente retrocó™ V í.UÜt;1'e 00nn«^sanee de l'acceptation deet^omme^no^eZmea '"or^lceS *£ .d/Fran^ :
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haut et quen qu.ttant le troné d'Espagne nous n'avons en vue que le plusgrand bien du peuple Espagnol que nous ne pourrons pas rendre au™heureux que nous voudr.ons, et que nous n'avons d'autre ambition queceul
de rentrer dans a v,e pnvee et Jans la retraite la plus absolue. Xous nousabandonnons entierement á lajust.ee de notre frére l'empereur des Franca Zpour le sor .des personnes quinous sont attachées au seítimens de la gloirequ, garnnt.t ses eflorts pour le bonheurde l'Espagne et á ses sentimens pa!ternels pour nos enfans, pour la reine, notre épouse, et pour nous.:Noiis nous engagerons á faire revétir de toutes les formes qui pourroient
paroitre plus authentiques le present acte écrit, rédigé, et signé de notrepropre main. Ayant jugé que le plus grand secret était indispensableiusqu a ce que nous avons connoissance de l'acceptation de a SL l'euiuercurdes Francais, rold Italie. iiempueui

Fait á Madrid, etc. etc

~ - , . Paris, 1811.
Depuis la conversation que j'ai eu avec vous sur ma position elle ne s'estpas nmdioree ;elle est telle aujourd'hui queje me voir forcé d'embrasser leseul pratique qu, me reste a prendre, celui de la rétraite la plus absolue enírance. Je serois deja partí si jene venois d'étre instruit que S M l'em-pereur quia sú que j'avois donné ordre d'acheter ou de louer une térro a

cent heues de París, avoit disapprouvé cette demarehe. et qu'il trouvnit plus
convenable, si je persistois dans ma resolution, que jeme rendisse á ma terrede Morfontaine aprés vous avoir prévenu de ma determinaron et avoirassuré ,ci 1 ordre publique aprés mon départ Je dirai en partant que ¡e
vais mentendre avec l'empereur pour les affaires d'Espagne, et je ferois lesmémes dispositions par rapport aux provinces qui entourent Madrid que je
fit lorsqu'il y a un an je partis pour l'expedition d'Andalousie \u25a0 cet étatdura sixmois sans nul désordre, et je ne doute pas que les dioses n'aillcntde la meme maniere et ne donnent le terms á l'empereur de prendre les dis-positions définitives.

Je suis prét a rendre l'empereur les droits qu'il me rémit á Bayonne surla monarchie d'Espagne et des Indes si ma position ici ne change "pas- par
eeqiic je dois croire que c'est le désir de l'empereur puisqu'il est imp.i-. il.lequ',1 veuille queje reste roi d'Espagne, et qu'ilm'óte toas les nioyens ,l'.\i.
tence. IIen peut étre malheureux que l'empereur ait voulu me reconnoitre
roi de {Tapies, ily a six ans lorsqu'a la tete de ses troupes je fis la conquétede ce royaume ;ce fut nialgré moi, et mes instanecs pour rester au com-
mandement de son armée avec la simple qualité de sou lieutenant furent leaujet d'une lettre dont je me rappelle trés-bicn.

Lorsqu'en 1808 je fus proclamé roi d'Espagne, je l'ignorois encoré; cepen-
dant arrive á Bayonne je fis tout ce que voulus l'euipereur, je signerais uneconstitution, je le signai appuyée par sa garantió. Les événemens n'ayant
pas répondu á nos esperances est ce ma (ante í Est eelui qui en est le plus
victim qui doit en porte,- la peine 1 Cependant tant que la guerre dur.- jeme suis soumis A tout ce que l'on a voulu, mais je ne puh? pas l'inipossible ;
je ne puis pas rester ici pluslongtemps si l'empereur ne vient á mon secoura.
En ordonnant qu'il soit versé dans mon trésor ¡i.Mudrid un million de franca
par mois, les autres provinces doivent contribuer aux besoins de la capitale.
Les troupes Francoises qui sont dans les provinces du centre (elles sont peu
nombreuses) doivent étre soldées par le trésor de France.

A la pacification genérale l'empereur exigera des indemnités ;s'cnten
drer alors ilposséde de fait presque toutes les provinces aujourd'hui, il sera
bien le maitre de ne les évacuer qu'á mesure qu'il croira que VEspagne aur*
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satisfait aux obligations qu'il lui aura imposées. En resume je suis prét á
faire la volante de l'empereur pourvu que je la connoise.
Io. Teut-il que je reste roi d'Espagne ? Je reste des qu'il m'en donne la

possibilité, et je stipporte tous les gouvernemens militaires qu'il a établis
puisqu'il les croit indispensables pendant la guerre.

2o. Préféreroit-il que je rentrasse dans le sein de ma famille á Morfon-
taine d'abord et l'hiver dans le midi? Je suis prét á partir des que je con-
noitrai sa volonté. J'ajoute de plus que le parti de la retraite me convien-
dra beaucoup plus que l'autre des que je sanrai qu'il lui convient. Je suis
sur alors qu'il aura quelques bontés pour les Franjáis qui se sont attachés
á mon sort, et que je ne serai pas á méme de rendre aussi heureux qu'ils le
méritent. Quant á moi, á la reine, et á mes enfans, l'empereur me faisant
payer mon traitement de prince Franjáis, nous en aurons assez, mon inten-
tion étant de vivre dans la retraite en m'occupant de l'édneation de mes
enfans, laissant á l'empereur le soin de leur établissement ;car je ne doute
pas si ce projet se vérifie que je ne retrouve le cceur de mon frére, et que
dans les intervalles oü ilse rappellera qu'il est homme, ilne trouvé encoré
quelque consolation en retrouvant mon cceur pour luiaussi jeune qu'il y a
trente ans. Enfin j'aime mieux vivre sujet de l'empereur en France que de
rester en Espagne roi nominal, parce que je serai bon sujet en France, et
mauVais roi en Espagne, et que je veux rester digne de i'empereur, de la
France, et de moi-méme.

Note.
—

The bad French is inthe originalMSS.

Marquis ofAlmenara to the Minister Secretary of State.

Translated froma decipltered Spanish letter.
"Eontainebleau, November 4, 1810."

This government is very uneasy about the military operations inPortu-
gal, from -whence they receive no accounts except through England, des-
cribed therefore factitiously and with the strongest hopes of resisting the
French forces that oppose their army. This problem willprobably be al-
ready solved and its conclusión will decide what is interesting to Spain.
It is therefore very important that our government should write all it
knows, and what will prove that it takes part in what belongs to both
countries ;because here Iam often asked what is said in Madrid on this
subject, and people are surprised that we limit ourselves entirely to the
urgent points of our neaotiation. This explains the proofs of affection
which the Prince Boyal ofSweden desired that the King should give to the
Emperor, being convinced that the letters ofhis Majesty, written inhis own
familiar style when he explains his sentiments, produce a great sensation
withthe Emperor."

Section III.

Letters from the Prince de Neufchatel to King Joseph.
Paris, 28 Janvier, 1811,

Sire,
—

J'ai l'honneur de prevenir votre majesté que l'empereur par sa
decisión du 21 Janvier a fixé les traitemens extraordinaires qui pourront
étre payés en Espagne á dater du 1er de l'année 1811, dans l'arrondissement
des armées du midi, du nord, de l'Arragon, &c Ces traitemens sont dé-
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Savoir

~ . , _ . Fr. par moi^
Les generaux gouverneu's dans les quatre gouvernemens comprüH

dans l'arrondissement de l'armée du nord .H
Le general chef de l'état major general de l'armée H
Généraux de división H
Généraux de brigade, inspecteurs anx revues et commissaires ordon_B

4000
8000
1800

nateurs
Adjudans commandans. colonels, et sous-inspecteurs aux revues .
Officiers de santé principaux
Chefs de bataillons. d'escadrons, commissaires de guerre, et chefs

d'administration des différens services
Commandans de place oceupant dans icnpitaines

l'armée un grade inférieur á ceux > lieutenans et sous-lieuts. . .
ci-dessus designes, savoir ... )

1200
750
500

400
400
300

Au moyen de ees indemnités ilne sera rien nlloué au-dessus des sommes
fixées ni pour dépenses de bureaos ou de table, nipour frnis extraordinaires,
de quelque nature qu'ils soient et sous Ojuelque pretexte que ce puisse étre, et
cette decisión n'a aucun effet rétroactif. J'écris á MM. les maréchaux et
généraux commandnnt en Espagne, pour leur faire connoitre que, d'aprés
les intentions de 1'empereur, tout militaire Franjáis qui á l'avenir aurait
exige ou recu des traitemens extraordinaires plus forts que ceux fixés par la
decisión du 21 Janvier, et qui s'en serait fait payer sans une ordonnance
réguliére des intendnns généraux ou commissaires ordonnateurs, sera suspen-
dí, de ses fonctions et qu'ilen sera rendu compte dans les vingt-quatre heures
pour prendre les ordres de l'empereur. Votre majesté jugera sans doute
convenable de donner ses ordres au general Belliard pour que cette dispo
sition soit suivie dans rarrondissement de l'armée du centre. Je prie votre
majesté d'agréer l'hommage de mon respect

Parí», 14 Février, 1811
Sire,—L'empereur ne m'a encoré donné aucun ordre rclatif á l'objet de la

lettre apportée par votre aide-de-camp le colonel Clermont Tonncrre. On

Íiense
que Valence ne se soumettra que par l'approchc d'une armée, et aprés

a prise de Tarragone le corps du general Suchet sera disponible. —
Lea

affaires paroissent s'améliorer en Portugal, le duc d'Istrie va établir l'ordre
dans le nord de l'Espagne. J'envoie mon aide-de-camp le colonel le Jeune
voir l'état des dioses á Grenade, Malaga, Cádiz et Badajos. Je prie votre
majesté d'avoir des bontés pour lui. L'empereur est en bonne santo, l'im-
pératrice est bientót á terme, et nous espérons un roi des Komains. L'em-
pereur aftermit de plus en plus le grand empire. Votre majesté le seconde,
mais nous apprécions ses peines et ses privations. Une nouvellc armée de
deux-cent mille hommes se forme dans le nord de la France, et l'empereur
est en position d'en imposer á qui tenteroit de contrarier ses grandes con-
ceptions ;tout est bien et va bien en France.

París, le 11 Avril, 1811
Sirf.,—J'ai eu l'honneur de mander a votre majesté, que l'empereur avoit

donné des ordres pour qu'il lui fut envoyé chaqué mois cent millo franca,
et je lui ai fait connoitre combien ilétoit important que les troupes destíneos
pour l'Andalousie y arrivassent sans retard.

L'empereur pense qu'il seroit utile de chercher á tirer parti de bons Ee-

Íingnols pour reunir de vrais cortez qui pourroient avoir de riufluence «nr
es esprits: l'intégrité de l'Espagne peut encoré étre maintenue si les cortea
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opéroient une réaction dans l'opinion : le Pérou et le .toxique se aont déiádeclares mdependants, et toutes les autres colonies vont échapptr á l'Es-pagne: les vrais Espagnols doivent savoir combien les Anglais les mal-
traitent On voit par les gazettes Anglaises que les cortez rassen.blés dans1lie de León ne furent qu'une miserable canaille et des gens obecurs quin'ont autreprojet que d'aller végéter dans les favernes de Londres: 'il ne
peut y avoir ríen á faire avec de pareils hommes. Sa majesté trouvé qu'il
y auroit un grand avantage á former des cortez tires de toutes les provinces
del Espagne oceupées par les armées Franjaises. une discussion éclairéeqm s etabliroit auroit beaucoup d'influence sur les esprits. L'empereur estobligé d'abandonner le projet qu'il avoit de s'entendre avec les cortez deilie de León, puisque ce n'est qu'un composé de gens sans aven :ce ne seroit
done quavec des cortez formes d'hommes tires de toutes les parties de l'Es-p»«rne qu on pourroit éclairer l'opinion des Espagnols qui aiment leur pays.Lmnbassadeur de l'empereur a transmis des plaintes sur votre maiór-general Votre majesté commande l'armée du centre. Par conséquent lahierarchíe militaire ne peut pas permettre qu'il s'éearte de ses devoirs Si
je corresponds souvent avec le general Belliard, c'est que votre majesté estun general roí,et queje dois luiéviter des détails qu'un maior-général lui
soumet. J

°
Aucun village d'Espagne n'a été réuni á la France, et l'empereur tient áce que votre majesté ait en Espagne toute la considération qui lui est due.

loutdépend encoré du partí qu'on peut tirer de la nation. Ce qu'ily a decertain, c est que les Anglais n'ont qu'un but:celui de ruiner la pénínsule
de la dotruire, parce qu'ils sentent bien qu'elle doit finirpar appartenir á laIranee, ou aun prmee déla maison de l'empereur, et qu'ils trouvent ungrand avantage á diviser un pays qu'il savent ne pouvoir garder.

Je presente a votre majesté l'hommage avec mon respect
Le prince Neufchatel, major-général

Alexandre.

París, en 6 Mai, 1811.Sire,— J'ai montré á l'empereur la lettre de votre majesté, en date du 21Avnl,par laquelle elle fait connoitre qu'elle se met en route pour Paris ;1empereur ne s'attendoit pas á cette resolution ;votre majesté lui ayantpronas de ne pas quitter l'Espagne sans étre convenuáravanee desmesuresa prendre et qu'exige une pareille détermination. L'empereur trouvé que
dans ees eirconstances le départ de votre majesté devoit étre precede de
1evaeuaüon de l'Andalousie afin de concentrer les armées. Car dans la
position des dioses, le départ de votre majesté va donner une secousse dé-
fayorable á la situation des armées de l'empereur. Si votre majesté avoitqmtté l'Espagne au mois de Janvier, oü les armées étoient en position sans
agir, cela auroit eu moins d'inconvénients. Dans ce moment votre arrivée
met l^empere-ur dans de grandes inquietudes, en vous considérant comme
roí dEspagne, et comme général-en-chef, l'empereur voit que votre retour
sera interpreté selon l'esprit et la tournure que les Anglais voudront ydonner, et fera un mauvais effet;qu'il est pénible que votre majesté se soit
portee á cette démarcbe dont ilne peut resulter aucun avantage, et quipeut avoir beaucoup d'inconvénients, car dans ce moment d'agitation l'Es-pagne va se trouver sans chef. Votre majesté ne voulant pas rester áMadrid, l'empereur trouvé qu'il auroit été tres utile qu'elle allát passer larevue de l'armée de Portugal oü de l'armée d .Andalousie :l'influenee 3*
votre majesté auroit surtout été bien utile pour procurer á l'armée de Por-
tugal tout ce quilui est néeessaire. L'empereur, sire, est dans une piftnd*;
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anxiété de savoir á qni vous avez donné le commandement de Pnrméc du
centre ;si vous avez preven» le duc de Dalmatie de votre départ, et qui
étant aux mains avec l'ennemi trouvera ses embarras augmentes, n'nvant
aucune direction sur ses derriéres. S'il étoit possible que votre majesté
recút cette lettre encoré en Espagne, l'empereur m'ordonne d'engager votre
majesté a sentir les inconvéniens de son retour si contraire aux circon-
stances. L'empereur n'a aucune nouvelle ni de l'armée d'Andalousie ni de
l'armée du centre. J'expédie á votre majesté un de mes aides-de-camp.
Etc, etc Alexandre.

Sire.
—

L'empereur a examiné attentivement les observations que votre
majesté lui a adressées, et me prescrit de me rendre nuprés d'elle pour avoir
l'honneur de luidonner connoissancc de ce qu'il juge le plus convennble sur
les divers points c¡ui en sont l'objet. L'empereur pense, sire, que votre
majesté peut partir de Paris quand elle le jugera á-propos, et méme sans
attendre son retour, si cela entrait dans les intentions de votre majesté.
L'armée du centre en Espagne est pleinement, entiérement sous les ordres
de votremajesté ;le general Belliard ne doit point prendre le titre de major
general, mais celui que lui ont toujours nttribué les ordres emanes de
l'empereur, de ehef d'état major de l'armée du centre. Si votre majesté n'est
pas contente de ce general, je vous engage, sire, á en proposer un autre qui
ait votre confiance. C'est á votre majesté, sire. qu'il appartiont de suspen-
dre, de renvoyer, de traduire méme á des conimissions militaires quand il y
a lieu, les généraux et offieiers de l'armée du centre ;d'adniinistror les pro-
vinces comprises dans l'arrondissement de cette armée comme votre matéate
le jugera le plus convenable au bien du service. A l'arniée du nord de
l'Espagne, l'empereur a besoin d'un maréchal qni soit charge du commande-
ment des troupes stntionnées dans les provinces formant í'arrondissenient de
cette armée. Le maréchal duc d'Istrie exorce maintenant ce commaiidement :
dans le cas, sire, oü ce maréchal ne conviendroit pas a V. M. l'empereur ne
aorait pas éloigné de le remplace," par le maréchal Jourdau si cette disposi-
tion étoit agréable á votre majesté et a ce maréchal. Mais l'empereur no
juge pas (ju'on puisse rien changer á l'organisation de l'armée du nord; il
est essentiel que ctttc organisation reste telle qu'elle est, si ce n'est de met-
tre cette armée sous los ordres d'un maréchal Franjáis qui posséde davan-
tage la confiance de votre majesté. Dans les gouvernemens qui formeut
l'arrondissement de cette armée, c'est au nom de votre majesté, .--iré, que la
justiee doit se rendre ;le commundant doit envoyer des rapports jourualu-m
á V. M.,l'intendant general M. Dudon doit envoyer ¡iV. M. l'état de laper-
ception des eontributions et de leur eniploi. L'empereur pense que V. M.
doit avoir auprés du général-en-chef de l'arniée du nord un commissaire
Espagnol pour veiller á ce que le quart du revenu des provincos de l'arron-
dissoinent de cette armée, soit versé á Madrid pour le service de votre ma-
jesté, et pour secourir l'armée du centre. L'empereur consent á ee que
toutes les fois que les provinces auraient les moyens nécessaires pour se
garder et se garantir dos incursions des guerillas, elles puissont reutror
entiérement sous l'admiiiistration Espagnole eu ne fournissant que ce qui
aera eonvenu. Quant á l'armée du midi de l'Espagne, l'empereur approuve
qu'ainsi qu'á l'armée du nord, le maréchal qui cumulando envoie dos rap-
ports á Y. M et l'instrube de tout ce qui se passe ;les budgets en recottos

et en dépenses des différentes provinces de l'armée du midi doivent aussi

étre envoyés á votre majesté, qui y liendra un connnissaire pour percevoi»

Paris, le 1 Juin, 1811.
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La merne métbode sera pareillement appliquée á l'armée d'Aragon L'em-pereur, sire, satisfait aussi aux désirs exprimes par V. M. Quant á ce quiconcerne le commandement general de ses armées en Espagne, sa majesténe croit pas pouvoir donner un tel commandement qui doit étre simple etun;votre M. sentara qu'il est dans la nature des dioses qu'un maréchalresidant a Madridet dirigeant les operations voudrait en avoir la gloire
avec la responsabilité et que dans ce cas, les commandans des armées du
midi et du Iortugal se croyant moins rédlement sous les ordres de votre Mque sous ceux de son chef d'état major, pourraient ne pas obéir, ou exécuter cequi leur serait present. Mais indépendamment du commandement delarmee du centre, V. M.,sire, aurait le commandement des troupes qui en-treraient dans 1 arrondissement de cette armée. Si l'armée du midi se re-pliait sur 1armée du centre, elle serait dés-lors sous les ordres de V M et ilen serait de méme pour l'armée du centre.

Dans celles des armées oü V.M. se rendrait, elle aurait les honneurs ducommandement ;mais, sire, l'empereur juge tres important de ne rienchanger au commandement militaire ni á l'armée du nord, ni á l'arméedAragon niaux armées du midi et de Portugal, excepté ce qu'il est né-eessaire d etabhr pour que V. M. ait des rapports de tout ce qui se passe
couna,isse tout et puisse se servir de ees relations, dans sa position céntrale'pour instruiré les autres généraux :sa majesté pense que cette communica-tion de renseignemens, d'observations, de conseils, peut méme avoir lieupar le canal du ministre de la guerre de V. M. L'empereur desire, sire, que
V. M. vemlle bien correspondre directement avec moi par des lettres signéesde sa main; jaurai l'honneur d'adresser directement les miennes á V MLemperaur desire également qu'elle s'en reserve l'ouverture etfasse connaitreensuite a son chef d'état major ee qu'elle jugera convenable. Je prie votreM. de vouloirWn donner ses ordres pour que tous les comptes rendus ouetats de situation me soient adressés, que les rapports soient tres exaets et
queje sois instrmt de tout ce qui peut intéresser le service de l'empereur
comme cela est d usage dans une armée. D'aprés les ordres de l'empereur
une somme de cinq cent mille franes par mois sera envoyée á V Mjusquau 1« Jmllet, et á compter du 1"Juillet, cet envoi sera d'un miilionpar mois pendant le reste de l'année.

L'empereur, sire, me prescrit d'avoir l'honneur de coneerter avec votremajesté les mesures qu'elle jugera convenables á l'organisation de l'armée
du centre, ainsi que pour en retirer les généraux qui ne conviendraient pasa votre majesté, faire des exemples de eeux qui auroient eommis des dilapi-
dations, leur faire restituer les sommes qu'ils auraient dilapidées • enfinsire, 1empereur se repose essentiellement sur votre majesté du soin demaintemr es officiers de son armée dans la discipline convenable et de fairedes exemples, et ildesire que V.M. envoie journellement des rapports dé-tailles sur tout ee quiest important. Votre majesté, sire, reconnoitra dansees dispositions que le desir de l'empereur est de faire tout ce qui peut don-ner unnouvel eclat á larentrée de V.M.en Espagne, enmaintenant d'ailleurs
dans leur integrite ainsi que sa majesté le juge indispensable, l'organisation
de iarmee dAndalousie et des autres armées d'Espagne &<¡

Observations faites par leRoi dEspagnemr la lettre du Major-Général, du
ler Juin, 1811,

Le roi demande :
1». Que Mesara, les maréehaux eommandant-en-chef les armées de l'empe-leui, a larmeedu nord, du Portugal, du midi, et de l'Aragon, ne puissent



augmenter les impóts existant á ce jour,nilever aucune contribution extra-ordinaire sans l'autorisation du roi, ou de l'empereur.'
2°. Le roi desire que le maréchal Jourdan remplace le maréchal ducd'Istne dans le commandement de l'armée du nord.
3°. Que les maréchaux commandnnt les armées de l'empereur et les inten-

aans généraux ne puissent vendré aucun bien nationaí ou communal sanal'autorisotion du roí:qu'il en soit de méme pour les plombs et vif-argent
nppartenant á l'état

4°. Que les admimstrations Espagnoles dans l'arrondissement des nrméeadu nord, du midi, de l'Aragon, resteront telles qu'elles sont, et que si deachangemens paroissent útiles, ils seront demandes au roi.
5°. Qu'il soit spécifié que le quart des revenus des provinces ocoupées

par les armées de l'empereur, en Espagne, sera versé net dans le trésor du
roí á Madrid, et que les trois autre quarts seront employés aux besoins de1armée dans les dites provinces, et en payement des traitemens dea adminis-
trations Espagnoles.

6°. Le roi se trouvant avoir l'honneur du commandement prés des armées
oüil se trouvé, pense qu'il est dans les intentions de votre majesté qu'il
nuisse voir et reunir les nutorités Espagnoles comme bon lui semblera pourleur parler dans l'intérét des nffaires d'Espagne; ce que le roi trouvé utile
de fau-e dans les lieux oü ils'arrétera pour 6e rendre a Madrid.

7°. IIparoít entendu que le maréchal commandnnt 1'nrmée de Portugal
rendra compte au roi de toutes les operations, ainsi que doivent le faire les
autres maréchnux.

8°. Leroi trouvé utilepour les intéréts des nffaires d'Espagne de pouvoir s'at
taeher des officiers Espagnols ou autres qui se trouveroient parmi les prison-mers, et que par des motifs partieuliers iljugeroit convenable d'employer.

9°. Le roi de Wesphalie qui ne peut pas recruter les régimens qu'il a cn
Espagne est disposé á mettre le petit nombre d'hommes qui reatent aux
drapeaux á la disposition du roi d'Espagne pour étre á sa soldé et á son
service ;le roi d'Espagne les placeroit utilement dans ln gardo.

10°. Le roi desire que le general Maurice Mathieu remplace legénéral Lorge.
11°. Qu'il ne reste a Madrid que l'administration néeessaire pour l'nrmóedu centre, et que cette grande quantité d'administrateursapparteiiant á l'ad-

ministration genérale qui n'existe plus á Madrid soit envoyée a Burgos ou
en France.

12°. Que la soldé des troupes Franynises faisant parti de l'armée du centre
continué á étre payée par le trésor de France.

13°. Sa majesté conservera le general Belliard comme chef de son état
major.

14°. Le roi desire pouvoir prendre toutes les mesures politiquea qu'il
jugera convenable, et faire toutes autres dispositions á l'égard des cortez, cn
se conformant aux vues contenues dans ln lettre que j'aiécrile d'aprés l'or-
dre de V.M. pour cet objet.

15°. Sur les 500,000 franes que V.M. met á la disposition duroi á Madrid
on en retient 100,000 franes pour l'arriéré. Le roi demande que cette
somme soit pour le service courant.

París, U 17 Juin, 1811.
Sire,—L'empereur m'ordonne de vous envoyer la copie de la lettre que

j'adresse au duc d'Istrie ;j'écrís á peu pros dans les mémes termes aux
autres commandants. Je n'ai pas encoré vn le maréchal Jonrdan ;je le
verrai demain et immédiatement aprés ilpartirá pour Madrid, oü l'empe-
reur apprendra avec plaisir qu'il est employé comme gouverneur.

Le duc de Raguse mande qu'il est en marche sur le Tage. L'empereur
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desire que M.M. donne ses ordres pour qu'on lui procure tous les secours
dont ilpeut avoir besoin: ila avec lui vingt-huit mille bayonnettes, troismille hommes de cavalerie, et trente-six pieces de canon. L'empereur de-
sire que V. M. puisse l'appuyer avec dix-huit cents chevaux, quinze á dix-huit pieces de canon, et deux á trois mille hommes d'infanterie :ce corpspourroit étre plaeé á proximité afin de pouvoir rejoindre et aider le duc deRaguse, s'il de voit donner bataille aux Anglais. L'empereur verroit avecplaisir, sire, qu'aprés votre arrivée á Madrid vous vous rendissiez á l'arméede Portugal, pour la passer en revue, l'animer, et prendre dans votre revue1etat des emplois vacans.

J ecns au duc de Raguse que si l'on pouvoit retrancher Alcántara et faireune tete de pont sur la rive droite, ce seroit une bonne operation. Si l'ar-mée de Portugal arrivoit á temps pour secourir l'armée du midi devant Ba-dajoz, le petit corps de reserve dont je viens de parler ci-dessus á votremajesté ne pourroit étre que de la plus grande utilité.
Le siége de Tarragone a déjá attiré une pai-tie des bandes qui étoient dans1arrondissement de l'armée du centre. Deux divisions de l'armée de reserveque forme l'empereur arriveront l'une á Parapetan*,, l'autre á Vittoria versle 14 Juillet ;cela mettra á méme d'envoyer encoré aux armées du midi etde 1ortugal environ douze mille hommes qui sont en Navarre, et qui pas-seront par Madrid. r
L'empereur ne peut qu'engager votre majesté á envoyer á l'armée dumidi tout ce quiluí appartient, car c'est lá que se portent les grands eoups

et qu ont lieu les operations les plus importantes.
&c,ifee.

To the duke ofIstria,
Alexandre.

Paris, Juin, 1811.
J'ai prévenu, Monsieur le maréchal, le general Monthion, les généraux

Caffarelli et Dorsenne directement des dispositions dont je- vais vous entre-temr, et qui ont rapport aux intentions de l'empereur relativement au
retour du roí d'Espagne dans ses états.

Le roi commande en chef l'armée du centre, mais l'intention de l'empereur
est que vous correspondiez avee S. M. C. en lui faisant le rapport de ce quise passe afm de la mettre á méme de connoitre l'ensemble des événemensen Espagne comme les autres généraux en chef ont l'ordre d'en agir dememe ;le roí sera dans le cas de pouvoir comme point central vous fairetaire des communications qui contribueront au succés des armes de l'emne-reur. i

S. M. I.m ordonne aussi de vous faire connaitre, M.le duc, que son inten-
tion est que pendant le voyage du roi dans son retour á Madrid tous leshonneurs luí soient rendus dans les gouvernemens et dans l'arrondissement
de 1iarmée du nord comme siS. M.commandait cette armée. Le roi donnera1ordre et recevra les honneurs du commandement. Les gouverneurs l'ae-
coropagneront dans leur gouvernement et luiferont fournir toutes les es-cortes qui luí seront néeessaires. IIest á présumer que le roi séjournera
quelque temps á Vittoria et á Burgos, et qu'il profitera de son séjour pourrassembler les notables du pays, les éelairer sur la situation des affaires et
amehorer l'espnt publie. Vous seeonderez, Monsieur le maréchal, les mesuresque le rol pourra prendre pour rendre les villes et les villages responsables
des abus qui se commettent sur leur territoire. Vous agirez de méme si le
roí aecorde le pardon á quelques bandes de guerillas qui se rendraient.
Vous de vez aider de tous vos moyens les mesures que S. M. prendra pour le
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rétnblissement de Tordre et de la tranquillité publique. Du reste les
troupes composant l'armée du nord doivent rester sous le commandement
respectif de leurs chefs et vos ordres doivent continner a étre exécutés sans
qu'aucun ordre de qui que ce soit puisse les changer. Quant á l'administration
du pavs, elle doit continner á marcher dans la direction donnée par los
instructions \u2666 et les ordres de 1'empereur: les fonds doivent étre destines
aux besoins de l'armée, á l'entretien des hópitaux, et vous devez défendre et
empécher toute espece d'abus. Le roi ayant plus particuliérement encoré

que vous, les moj'ens de connaitre les abus qui ont lieu, l'empereur ordonne
que vous profitiez des lumiéres que le roi pourra vous donner á cet égard
pour les réprimer. 11 est néeessaire, Monsieur le duc, que vous me fassiez
connaitre le budget des ressourees et des depenses, afin de savoir la partie
des revenus qui pourront étre verses á Madrid dans la caisse du gouverne-
nient pour le service du roi et pour l'armée du centre.

Je n'ai pas besoin de vous répéter que la justiee doit se rendre an nom du
roi;cela a toujours dü avoir lieu;le droit de faire gráce ne vous appar-
tient pas pour les individué condamnés par les tribunaux ;vous n'étes auto-
ricé qu'á suspendre l'exéeution dans les cas que vous jugerez graciables.
Le droit de faire gráce n'appartient qu'au roi. Vous n'avez pas non plus
le droit de nommer á aucune place du clergé ;le roi y nomine dans toutes
les parties de son royaume.

Si le roi juge á propos de teñir prés de vous et des gouverneurs un com-
missaire Espagnol pour connaitre les recettes et les dépenses, vous devez
donner á ce commissaire les renseígnemens dont ilaura besoin pour remplir
es mission. Vous aurez soin, Monsieur le maréchal, de me rendre compte
journellement de ce qui se sera fait pendant le séjour du roi afin que j'en

1'empereur. <fcc.. \u25a0

I^ParisTle 21 Aoút. 1811.

iré,
—J'ai l'honneur d'informer votre majesté que d'aprés les ordres de

l'empereur. je viens de faire connaitre á M. le maréchal duc de Raguse, que
l'armée de Portugal doit prendre désormais sa ligne de communication sur
Madrid;je luí mande que c'est lá que doit étre son centre de dépót, et que
toute operation que l'ennemi fernit sur la Coa ne peut déranger cette liirne;
que si l'ennemi veut prendre l'offensive ilne peut la prendre que dans l'An-
dalousie parce que de ce cóté ila un objet á remplir, qui est de faire lever le
siege de Cádiz, tandis que ses efforts dans le nord. s'avaneAt-il méme jus
qu'á Valladolid, n'aboutiraient a rien, puisque les troupes que nous avons
dans ees provinces en se repliant lui opposeraient une armée considerable,
et qu'alors l'armée de Portugal devrait faire pour l'armée du nord ce qu'elle
ferait pour l'armée du midi. Je le préviens que l'objet important est que
sa ligne d'opérations soit sur Talayera et Madrid, parce que son armée est
spécíalement destinée á proteger celle du midi. Je lui fais observer que
l'armée de Portugal étant attaquée de front son mouvement de retraitc est
encoré sur Madrid, parce que dans tous les cas possibles ce doit étre sa ligne
d'opérations ;qu'il fau* done que tous les dépóts quelconques appartenant
á l'armée de Portugal soient diriges sur Talavera et Madrid. Je doune 1 or-
dre impératif au general Dorsenne de faire partir dans les 24 heures tous
les dépóts et détacbeinens qu'iln appartenant á l'armée de Portugal ;tout
ce qui est en état de servir sera dirige en gros détachomons par Avila sur
Plaeentia ;et quant aux hommes qui ne sont pas pour lo monieut en etat de
aervir, le general Dorsenne les fora diriger sur Madrid, et aura soin d on
informer á l'avance votre majesté; de maniere qu'il ne lui restera plus un
seul homm,e appartenant á l'armée de Portugal, sauf la garnison de Uudad
Rodrigo qu'il fera relever et rejoindre aussitót aprés l'arrivée des renfort*
«ui vont se rendre á l'arniée <iu uord.

*c-,°LC
-
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Sire, —L'empereur m'a demandé si j'avois réponse á la lettre que j'ai eu
1honneur d'adresser á V. M. en luirendant compte de la reddition de Figue-ras. _ L'empereur m'ordonne d'annoneer á V. M. que son intention est d'éten-
dre a toute la nve gauche de l'Elbre la mesure qu'elle á jugó devoir adopterpour la C'atalogne. L'empereur pense que V. M. témo'in de la resistance
quéprouvent les armées et des sacrifices de toutes espéces que la France
est obligée de faire, est trop juste pour ne point appréeier les motifs de laconduite de l'empereur, tt je suis autorisé a, assurer V.M. des sentimensd intérét et d'amitié qui continuent á animer l'empereur pour V.M. mais ilsne peuvent pas faire négliger á S. M. I.et R. ce qu'elle doit á la súreté deson empire et á la gloire de son régne. &«., «feo.

Boulogne, le 20 Sept. 1811,

No. VIL

OPERATION PROJECTED FOR TIIE ARMY OF PORTUGAL.
ADDRESSED TO MARSHAL MARMONT BT PRINCE BERTHIEK, DATED COMFIEGNE

18th september, 1811.

[Extracted from Belma's
"

Península Sieges."]

Marsual,
—

-When you shall have eighty pieces of artillery well furnished •
when General Vanderma?sen and aíl your dépóts left in the north shalíhave joined you; and when you have received all equipments and cloth-
ingdestmed for your army, the emperor counts on your having forty-one
thousand seven hundred men, and we shall then be near the firstof OctoberWhen you are sure that Ciudad Rodrigo has been revictualled for threemonths, the emperor leaves you free to mareh on Badajos, invest Elvas andinúndate the Alemtejo. In that case S. M. direets that' the fifth corps shallbe under your orders, with three thousand cavalry which the duke of Dal-matia will furnish. You will thus have fifty-seven thousand three hundredmen based on Estremadura and the fortress of Badajos, and yon can besiegeElvas, take the town and one ofthe forts, which willnot be diffifcult, dis-turb the English toward Abrantes and Lisbon, and in a good position watch
to see ifthey willgive battle to relieve Elvas. Ifthev let you besiege thatplace, you will have gained a real advantage. You willhave relieved thenorth, and by that single stroke have thrown the enemy into Lisbon. El-vas might be taken before the 15th ofNovember with tíie exception of one
fort which is of little importance :this willforward affairs so, that before
the month of February the campaign willbe active in the interior of Por-tugaL

Ifthe enemy should then take the offensive and move on Salamanca andValladolid,he will find Salamanca fortified and provisioned for twomonths ;
and General Dorsenne willhave to fall back upon Valladolid, or even on
Burgos, where he will findhimself at the head of fiftythousand men exclu-
sive of a división in the Asturias and ofthe troops iiíthe 3rd 4th and 5th
governments. But this movement of the English is not at all probable;
they willmore likdy basten to the defence of Lisbon, and will be pursued
by twenty-five thousand men detached from the army of the north. So
that two divisions willhold them in check. The operation which Ihave
explained to you, marshal, is the only one which can do honor to our arma.
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draw us out of the defensive state we are in, make the English tremble, and
advance us towards great events. The twenty-five thousand men who shall
be on the Coa, will follow the English army;and if the Íatter eoncentratos
entirely on the Tagus, the army of the north willdetach fifteen thousand
mon to join you, which willgive you a forcé of seventy-two thousand three
hundred men.

The taking of a fortress under the eyes of the English army ;the conquest
ífa part of Portugal which willcover the army of the south"; and the junc-
tion with your forcé of twenty-five thousand men from that nriny of the
oouth, wilíbe for you motives of glory and of success. On another side mar-
shal Suchet will mareh upon Valencia, and everything tends to a belicf
that Valencia willbe taken by the time you have reduced Elvas, and that
yon can be thus reinforced with another good división.

Ton have, marshal, well observed that to execute the operation proposed,
ve must be sure that Oís enemy has not got any battering train io attack Cuidad
Rodrigo ;because ifthe siege of that place is commenced, itwillbe neees-
sary at first to mareh and disengage the fortress, seeing the arm\- of the
north is not strong enough alone to do so, and its business is to fall back if
the English, which is not likely, attempted to fallupon that army when you
mareh on the south. But if you are prepared, and that Cuidad Rodrigo is
not besieged, you can, with the aid of the fifthcorps, attack and ovcrthrow
nll the positions of the line of English placed on the left bank of the
Tagus. That willcause such alarm, and willso disqniet Lord Wellington,
that he willprobably return by long marches to Lisbon.

In case ofyour junction with the army ofthe north to mareh for the suc-
cor of Cuidad Rodrigo, if the enemy besiege it, you will by bis mnjesty'a
orders have the command of both armies. You willfind joined to this let-
ter a duplícate order placing the fifth corps under your command when yol,
shail have resolved to mareh on Elvas :also a duplícate order to General
Dorsenne, ifyou mareh on Cuidad Rodrigo.

(Signed) Alexander.

No. VIII.

Section I.

CONDUCT OF THE ENGLISH GOVERNMENT.

EXTRACT FROM MR. CANNING'S INSTRUCTIONS TO MR- STUART AND

MR. DOFF, r808.

"
You are to enter into no political engagements."

To Mr. Stuart.

To James Duff, Esq. "July 26, 1808."
You willembark on board his Majest\ 's ship, Stately ;on board of that

ship are embarked to the amount of one "millionof Spanish dollars. three
fcurths in dollars and one fourth in bars, which sum is consigned to your
eare, and is destined by his Majestv for the use of the Kingdom of Anda-
lusia and the provinces ofSpain connected with them.
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"His Majesty ha» no desire to annex any conditions to the pecuniarv assistance which he furnishes to Spain." pecumaij as
"Militarystores to a considerable amount are now actually shipping forSfflMw" reqmI

'
ed f01' the clotl'¡"g°f *•Andalusfarn ¿my"

Itwas only by a direct but secret understanding with the governmentof Spain under the conmvanee ofFrance, that any considerable amount ofdollars has been collected in England."-' Each prjvince of SpaL n ade kaown apphcation vvithreference to the full amount of its own fmmed afe necessities, and to the fu1 measure of its own intended exertions Ct withouttakmg-inte> cons.derat.on that similar necessities and similar exertions lend¡SJmE ÍZTt
™"0t

li
r PaI

'tS'aD,d *•*«""*•each sépate demtdmight in itself be reasonably supposed to come within the limits of themeans of Great Britain, yet that the whole together oeeasion a cali for

Sene?
"

n6Ver bef°re WaS made tMs co
-

"y lof iu

is lilabv P^'Jtí^-Í 11-6 TT*l™H/S Publi0l y not»>-i°«s that a subsidyP
i A,Gle/lt1B

"ta"1 to Sweden of one million two hundred thousandpounds, the whole of which, or nearly the whole, must be remitted inIIamounting to at least seven million dollars. One milion of doílars has á!lready been .sent to Gihon, another to Coruña iupart o{ the re pective demanda of the prmcipahty of Asturias and the Kingdom of Gallicia and theremainder o these demands as already brought forward would require notless than eight million dollars more to satisfy them."-" An applicatio ifromPortugal has also been received for an aid which will amount to aWtwelve or thirteen hundred thousand dollars; one million, as has beenstated goes m the ship withyou to Cádiz, and the remainder of the Andalusian demand would require between three and four millions ofdollars moreHere therefore, there are not less than three and twenty millions ofIX*ofwhieh near sixteen millions for Spain and Portugal required to be sud-denly drawn from the British treasury."
'

"
In addition to this drain it is also to be considered that the BritishTZtTZüt f

e Same TTn - S6nt *?? ÍQ aid of the same eau^> and thateveiv art, de of expense to be mcurred by them on foreign service in what-
ZZr™ .\'h

°
J Tí em^f- »™* be defrayedby remittancls ins her. -Yon wi1be partieularly careful in entering upon the explana-

rate 7h nÍV"fU, t0 "*»PP«™'*» of a desire toover-late the merit and valué of the exertions now making by Great Britain infavor of the Spanish nation, or to lay the ground for restíaining or limitingthose exertions withinany other bounds than those which are preseríoed bfthe linnts ofthe actual means ofthe country."
l

Mr. Canning to Mr. Stuart.

.. ,. " , ¿«fy 2*7, 1808."Already the deputy from Coruña has added to his original demand fortwo millions of dollars, a further demand for three millions on learning from*
Note by Editor -Nevertheless Sir John Moore had only £25,800 ¡nhis militarv chestand to David Baird only £3,00, whieh were given him by Sir jóhn Moore.

* '

"
Mr.Frere willIhave told yon that the Semiramis has brcraght a million of dollars in

of the Marau ofK T^' f"'000 '"
d°Utn'?

'^"
e t0 be PteseXd to the ™yoí the Marquis ofRomana."—'- In the mean time the British troops remain in their tranwort .

¡ÍCZii^^l^^ ShaU b6 ÍnTÍted
'*

the •»\u25a0 «d without a"hímnP
g°S

Admiral De Courcy to Mr.Stuart, October 81, 1808.
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the Asturian deputies that the demand from Asturias had amounted to five
mulions in the first instance. Both profess in conversation to include a
provisión for the interests of León and of Oíd Castile in the demand. But
this has not prevented a direct application from León.""

Itisbesides of no small disadvantage that the deputies from the Astu-
rias and Gallicia having left Spain at so early aperiod are really not compe-
tent to furnish information or advice upon the more advanced state of things
in that country."

—"
Ihave already stated to you that in applications for

succors, there is an underground appearance of rivalry, which with every
disposition to do everjthing that can be done for Spain, imposes a necessity
of perpetual caution with respect to the particular demands of each pro-
vinee. The Asturians having been rebuked by their constituents for not
having applied for pecuniary aid as quickly as the Gallicians, are bent upon
repairing this fault, and the Gallician having been commended forprompti-
tude, is ambitious of acquiring new credit by increasing the amount of bis
demands. Whatcver the ulterior demands these several provinces have to
make, willbe made with infinitely more effect through yon and Mr.Hunter
respectively, as they will then come aceompanied with some detailed and
intelligible exposition of the grounds and objeets of each particular applica-
tion."

Mr. Sluarfs despatches to Mr. Canning."Corana, July 22, 1808."
Accounts of advantages in the quarters, which from the present stnte

of things can have little or no communication with this place, appear to bo
numerous in proportion as the north of Spain is barren of events agreoable
to the existing government; and Iam disposed to consider unautbenticnted
reports of success in Catalonia, Valencia, Murcia, and Andalusia, to be a
mode of concealing or palliating disasters in León, Castile, and the Mon-
tana."

"July 24, 1808."
One thousand men, under De Ponte, is the utmost forcé the Asturias

have yet organized or sent into the field, and the contingenta of León are
very trifling."

""Thirty thousand men, of which twenty thousand are regular troops
urider Blake, were united to ten thousand Castillian reeruits under Cuesta.
Thev went to Rio Seco to mareh against Burgos, and cut off Bessiéres' re
trent to France, but they lost seven thousand men at Rio Seco.""

The Estremadura army under Gallegos is at Almaraz, consisting of
twenty-four thousand infantry and four thousand cavalry, but the battle of
l'.io Soco has cut the communication which had been before kept up to

Andalusia."

Abstract of information sent to Mr. Canning by Mr. Stuart."
July 26, 1808."

The 29th of May the inhabitants of Coruña appointed a provisional
junta of forry members taken from the notables of the place, and '.bis junta
despatched círculars to the seven provinces of St. Jago. Betaneos, Coruña,

Mondonedo, Orense, Lugo, and Tuv, desiring that deputies from oach should
come to Coruña to form a junta for Gallicia entire. Seven pertons carne
and imme liatelv seized the government and dissolved the loca, junta ;the

t.-oops marched* to the frontier, deputies went to England, and all seemed to
proceed well until contributions were demanded. Then the provinces de

uiurred, saying, their deputies were empowered only to signify their apprc
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bation of what had passed, but not to seize the government, and St. Jago
insisted upon sending more deputies, and having additional votes as being
of more consequence. Itwas then arranged that two deputies from each
provinee should be sent to Coruña withmore power. The archbishop and
a Mr. Freiré carne from St. Jago, and others were arriving when the first
deputation resolved not to submit, and declared the seeond to be an ordi-
nary junta, chosen for the mere purpose of raising monev, and subordínate
to themselves. The archbishop and the bishop of Orense refused to aet in
such a capacity ;but a letter from the Íatter painting the true. state of things
being intereepted, he was arrested and confined in the citadel. A body of
troops was sent to St. Jago, itwas uncertain whether to seize the arch-
bishop or to awe the people ;but Mr. Stuart was secretly assured itwas for
the former purpose. The archbishop thought so also and carne immediately
to Coruña. This transaction was studiously coneealed from the English
envoy, but he penetrated the secret. The people were diseontented at this
usurpation of the junta of seven, but the lavish succors sent to them byMr.Canning and the presence of Mr. Stuart induced them to submit as
tlunking the junta were supported by England."

This junta of seven adopted no measures in common with any noigh-
boring provinee, but willingly entered into cióse alliance with the insur-
gente of Portugal as one independent state with another ;and they with-
held any share of the English supplies for the armies of Asturias and León.. t>V, arcllblsho P was an intriguing, dangerous man, and secretly wroteto Blake to mareh with the army against the junta; his letter being inter-
eepted, six voted to arrest him, but the seventh, with the assistance of Mr.Stuart, persuaded them to avoid so violent a measure, as tending towardsa civil commotion. Tumults, however, did take place, and the Englishnaval officers were requested and eonsented to quell a riot, aud it provedtnat they had more influence over the people than the junta."

InAugust the archbishop was commanded to leave Coruña he obeyed
and the bishop of Orense was after some resistance made a member of théjunta."

Mr. Stuart to Mr. Canning.
"

August 7."
There is no common plan and consequently no concert in their proeeed-

ings.
-

No provinee shares the succors granted by Great Britain with its
neighbor, although that advantags may not, be useful to themselves Nogun-boats have been sent from Ferrol to protect St. Andero on the coastof Biscay, and the Asturians have in vain asked for artillery from tliedépóts of Gallicia."

The stores landed at Gihon and not used by the Asturiana have re-
mained in that port and in Oviedo, although they would have'afforded aseasonable relief to the army of Blake."

The money brought by the Pluto for that provinee of León, wjiieh has
not raised a man and was till this moment in the hands of the French re-
manís, unemployed in the port where itwas landed. Estremadura is 'said
to have nine thousand eavalry, which are of little service since the French
quitted that provinee. Yet they have not sent, a man to Blake, who can-
not prudently stir from his present position without cavalry. General Cu-esta also has deprived him of six hundred horse and his flying artillery,
with which he has actually quitted Salamanca on his way to join the Es-tremadura army." J


